Wiltshire Council

~—-_ Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting: CABINET CAPITAL ASSETS COMMITTEE
Place: Council Chamber - Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham, SN15 1ER
Date: Tuesday 24 July 2012

Time: 2.00 pm

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to James Hazlewood, of Democratic
Services, County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01722 434250 or email
james.hazlewood@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225)713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
Clir John Noeken - Resources
Clir Fleur de Rhe-Philipe - Strategic Planning, Economic Development and Tourism
Clir Jane Scott OBE - Leader of the COuncil
Clir Toby Sturgis - Waste, Property and Development Control Services

Clir John Thomson - Deputy Leader and Adult Care, Communities and Housing




AGENDA

Part |
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

Key Decisions Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the Council’s
Forward Work Plan are shown as @™

Apologies

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 6)

To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet (Capital
Assets) Committee meeting held on 24 May 2012.

Chairman's Announcements

Declarations of interest

To receive any declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests or
dispensations granted by the Standards Committee.

Urgent items

Any other items of business that the Chair agrees to consider as a matter of
urgency.

Capital Budget Monitoring 2011/12 Qutturn Report (Pages 7 - 18)

To consider the attached report of the Chief Finance Officer.

Salisbury Marketplace (To Follow)

To consider the report of the Service Director for Economy and Enterprise.

Transformation Programme Update (Pages 79 - 38)

To consider the attached report of the Corporate Director for Transformation and
Resources.



10

11

12

13

Property Disposals (Pages 39 - 56)

To consider the attached report of the Corporate Director for Transformation and
Resources.

Land at Innox Road, Trowbridge (Pages 57 - 62)

To consider the attached report of the Corporate Director For Transformation
and Resources.

Gypsy and Traveller Project (Pages 63 - 74)

O=»To consider the attached report of the Service Director — Strategy and
Commissioning.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

To consider passing the following resolution:

To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in the
following items because it is likely that if members of the public were present
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph
3 of Part | of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the
public.

Part Il

Items during consideration of which it is recommended that the public
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt
information would be disclosed

Property Disposals (Pages 75 - 82)

To consider the attached appendices (exempt from publication) in relation to
item 9 above.



14

15

Land at Innox Road, Trowbridge (Pages 83 - 84)

To consider the attached appendix (exempt from publication) in relation to item
10 above.

Gypsy and Traveller Project (Pages 85 - 92)

O=»To consider the attached appendix (exempt from publication) in relation to
item 11 above.



Wiltsniiie Coundcil

~—-_ Where everybody matters

CABINET CAPITAL ASSETS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a MEETING held in COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES,
BRADLEY ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 ORD on Thursday, 24 May 2012.

Clir Jane Scott OBE Leader of the Council

Clir John Noeken Cabinet Member for Resources

Clir Fleur de Rhe-Philipe Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Strategic
Planning

Clir Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Waste, Property, Environment and
Development Control Services

Clir John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Adult Care,

Communities and Housing

Also in Attendance: Clir John Brady
Clir Dick Tonge
Clir Stuart Wheeler
Clir Peter Doyle
Clir Jemima Milton
Clir Bill Moss

19  Apologies

An apology for absence had been received from Clir Lionel Grundy.

20 Minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved:
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held
on 21 March 2012.

21 Chairman's Announcements

None.

22 Declarations of interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 1



23

Extra Care Development - Burnham House Site, Malmesbury

Councillor John Thomson, Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Communities and
Housing introduced the report updating members on the progress of the extra
care development initiative for older people on the former Burnham House site
in Malmesbury.

The contract for the development of the site was currently subject to a mini-
competition procurement exercise under the joint preferred developer
framework established with Devon County Council. Subject to the satisfactory
completion of this exercise, the report sought delegated authority for the
relevant Cabinet Members to award the contracts in liaison with the Corporate
Director and the Section 151 officer.

Councillor Thomson reported that the project was an excellent example of
community engagement, with three members of the community being part of the
tender evaluation panel.

Resolved
That the Cabinet (Capital Assets) Committee:

a. Notes the progression of the extra care development initiative for older
people on the former Burnham House site in Malmesbury.

b. Delegates authority to the Cabinet Member for Adult Care,
Communities and Housing and the Cabinet Member for Waste,
Property, Environment and Development Control Services in liaison
with the Corporate Director (Statutory Responsibility for Adult Care
Services) and the Section 151 Officer to award the extra care
development, management and care and support provision contract,
where appropriate, on the former Burnham House site in Malmesbury
following the satisfactory conclusion of the formal tendering process.

Reason for Decision

The joint preferred development framework contract with Devon County Council
provides an innovative and efficient procurement mechanism to select
construction partners, operators and potentially care and support providers for
extra care facilities across Wiltshire and Devon.

The development of extra care housing on the Burnham House site would meet

the needs of the growing elderly population in Malmesbury and improve choice
and control for older people whilst providing a vital community resource.

Page 2



24

The involvement of the Burnham House Working Group in the tender evaluation
and development of the scheme, promotes community engagement and will
ensure that the facilities meet the needs of the local community.

Rudloe Community Centre

Councillor John Thomson, Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Communities and
Housing, introduced the report which sought initial approval to work with
GreenSquare to explore options to re-develop the Rudloe Community Centre in
conjunction with GreenSquare’s assets and some Wiltshire Council land in the
immediate area.

Councillor Thomson moved an additional recommendation 5, which sought to
clarify the arrangements for reporting back to the Capital Assets Committee

Resolved

1. To seek approval to work with GreenSquare and the local community
to explore options to remodel and to deliver a successful, well used
and well resourced community centre

2. To explore options to use council owned land together with
GreenSquare assets to generate funding to enable remodelling of the
community centre

3. To explore options to transfer the ownership of the community centre

4. To explore opportunities to create wider links in the community e.g.
with military personnel and their families.

5. That a further report will be brought to the Cabinet Capital Assets
Committee outlining the outcomes of the further feasibility work and a
financial appraisal to show how this will be funded, and to seek
approval to any proposals to transfer ownership of and/or remodel the
community centre.

Reasons for Decision

The existing layout of the community centre was not fit for purpose and it was
not being used as a hub for community activities. New designs could create a
layout which would maximise the space within the centre and provide facilities
that would benefit different community activities. There was an established
community in Rudloe with many local people wanting to see the community
centre used to its full potential.

Page 3



25

Rudloe was an area where the community would benefit from a well run, fully
functioning community centre. Data from the 2001 census showed that Rudloe
had a high percentage of vacant dwellings, which may be a result of the high
turnover of military personnel within the area and a low percentage of
ownership. The military accounted for almost 14% of the housing stock and was
likely to be associated with a high turnover of population. The second was that
of the total housing stock, Rudloe had a high proportion of social housing.

In 2011 the founding and long standing trustees of RCA stood down and a new
group had since been formed. This group was keen to work with the council to
find a solution to the current issues.

The proposal could help link Rudloe with the wider community to help create a
sustainable community and provide a fully functioning community centre.

Wiltshire Council Land - Easton Square, Sherston

Councillor John Thomson, Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Communities and
Housing, introduced a report which sought approval to use a small parcel of
Wiltshire Council land to provide some much needed new housing in Sherston
in partnership with GreenSquare.

It was noted that GreenSquare had undertaken to provide accommodation for
the owners of the existing properties during construction, and that planning
permission as still required for the scheme.

Resolved
That Cabinet (Capital Assets) Committee:

1. Delegates authority to the Service Director for Strategy and
Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Housing to approve and execute the transfer of Council land valued
at £7,500 to GreenSquare for £1, subject to the planning permission
and full agreement of the owners of numbers 11 and 12, Easton
Square.

2. Authorises officers to work up the scheme with GreenSquare to
enable the delivery of a mixed tenure scheme subject to planning
permission.

Reason for Decision

The Council's land has been independently valued at £7,500 and is
undevelopable without neighbouring owner occupiers contributing some of their
surrounding land to deliver some new housing. The owner occupiers of number

Page 4



26

27

28

11 and number 12 Easton Square approached the Council to work together to
achieve this.

In December 2011 a rural housing need survey was undertaken with the
support of the Parish Council and identified 21 households seeking an
affordable home in Sherston. The Parish Council are keen to see some more
affordable housing for local people. The proposal also makes good use of
undevelopable land.

Housing Private Finance Initiative (PFl) Phase 2 Sites

Councillor John Thomson, Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Communities and
Housing, introduced a report which sought approval in principle to allocate
sufficient Council owned sites, for nil consideration, to enable the delivery of at
least 108 new affordable homes through the Housing Private Finance Initiative
(PFI) project phase 2, with a minimum of 48 units delivered on Council owned
land.

Resolved
The Cabinet (Capital Assets) Committee agrees to:
1. Approved the allocation in principle of sufficient Council owned
sites to enable the delivery of 108 new affordable homes through
the Housing Private Finance Initiative (PFl) project phase 2, with a
minimum of 48 units delivered on Council owned land as agreed in
the Final Business Case, subject to planning permission.

2. Agree that all Council owned site in the project will be provided for
nil consideration.

Reasons for Decision

Delivery of phase 2 of the Housing PFI project will result in the completion of
around 108 new affordable homes to meet the housing needs of residents of
Wiltshire and will secure up to £23.76 million Revenue Support Grant.

Urgent items

None.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

Page 5



Resolved

That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in
Item 11 because it was likely that if members of the public were present
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
paragraph 3 of Part | of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in
withholding the information outweighed the public interest in disclosing
the information to the public.

29 Housing Private Finance Initiative (PFl) Phase 2 Sites

The Committee noted the exempt information in relation to the decision at
minute 26 above.

(Duration of meeting: 10.30 - 11.05 am)

These decisions were published on the 28 May 2012 and will come into force on 7
June 2012

The Officer who has produced these minutes is James Hazlewood, of Democratic
Services, direct line 01722 434250 or e-mail james.hazlewood@wiltshire.gov.uk
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 6



Agenda ltem 6

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet Capital Asset Committee

24 July 2012

Subject: Capital Monitoring Outturn Report 2011/2012

Cabinet member: Councillor John Brady
Finance, Performance and Risk

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

The report reflects the position of the 2011/2012 Capital Programme as at 31
March 2012, which shows a £7.277 million underspend against the final
budget.

The report also details changes to the budget made since the previous
monitoring report, which are to be noted by Cabinet.

Proposal

a. Note the Final outturn position of the capital programme in Appendix A.
b. Note total budget increases of £0.685 million as shown in Appendix B.

c. Note the final reprogramming of budgets of £7.990 million into 2012/2013.

Reasons for Proposals

To inform Cabinet of the final position of the 2011/2012 capital programme
and highlight changes and note budget reprogramming into 2012/2013.

| Michael Hudson Director of Finance

Page 7



Wiltshire Council

Cabinet Capital Asset Committee

24 July 2012

Subject: Capital Monitoring Outturn Report 2011/2012

Cabinet member: Councillor John Brady

Finance, Performance and Risk

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1. To update Cabinet on the position of the 2011/2012 Capital Programme
as at 31 March 2012 and note budget changes and note reprogramming
of expenditure into 2012/2013.

Budget movements

2. Between the Period 10 monitoring report presented to the Cabinet
Capital Assets committee (CCAC) at the meeting on 21 March 2012 and
this Outturn monitoring report, the budget is proposed to be adjusted as

detailed in the table below.

£m

Notes

Capital budget as per CCAC Period 10
monitoring report (21 March 2012)

102.416

Additions/amendments to the capital programme 2011/2012 since Period 10
monitoring report

Additional Highways contributions 0.679 | See below for further
explanation.

Other contributions 0.006 | See Appendix B for further
information.

Total movements in Period 0.685

Final Capital budget 2011/2012 103.101

3.  Additional contributions for highways schemes were received and added
to the programme in March 2012. These contributions largely comprised

Page 8




of developers contributions to fund integrated transport schemes
undertaken in 2011/2012.

Summary of Current Position as at 31 March 2012

4.

7.

The final budget for the year 2011/2012 is £103.101 million. As at 31
March 2012 the actual spend was £95.824 million (93% of spend to final
budget). A full breakdown of these figures is attached in Appendix A.

As this is the outturn monitoring report the only adjustments to the
reported budget are for minor additions, further details are in Appendix
B.

Further reprogramming of expenditure of £7.990 million from 2011/2012
is being actioned in 2012/2013 as part of this report and is also broken
down in Appendix A.

Further details on the larger variances from outturn are shown below.

Education schemes

8.

10.

The outturn variance on Wellington Academy is showing an overspend
of £0.199 million. As with any major project of this size, the final account
is being finalised and some further sums are likely to be recoverable
from the Academy upon settlement. However at present £0.199 million is
the current estimated overspend on the entire £33 million project. There
is further work to do to ensure this is the correct position and any sums
that are recoverable will be able to be used as financing on other
Academy schemes. The Sarum Academy scheme has had some slight
delays due to signing of the contract so the expenditure incurred in
2011/2012 is lower than planned. The £0.482 million underspend on this
scheme will be reprogrammed into 2012/2013.

Additional accommodation schemes which comprise 26 individual
extension schemes are showing a £0.215 million variance. This variation
is from a number of the schemes in this area having slight variances
between final year budget and spend. The £0.215 million reflects the
work progressing quicker than expected, therefore the budget has been
reprogrammed between years accordingly. The two largest schemes
requiring reprogramming are at Westbury Matravers and Tidworth
Clarendon Infants.

New Deals for Schools (NDS) schemes are to fund high priority condition
works including roof replacements, rewiring and window replacements.
NDS maintenance is showing a £0.404 million variance. The work this
budget is earmarked for has now been scheduled to take place in
August 2012. The £0.404 million budget will be reprogrammed into
2012/2013 to cover this work.

Page 9



11.

12.

13.

DCSF Primary Capital Programme is showing a £0.226 million variance.
All projects (with one exception) are now complete including large
schemes at Purton St Mary’s and Lydiard Millicent schools. The only
amounts outstanding are retention payments which will all be payable
during 2012/2013. The budget will therefore be reprogrammed into
2012/2013 to cover the retention payments.

DCSF Targeted Capital 14-19 SEN is showing a £1.373 million variance.
The majority of this variance on final budget relates to a large extension
and refurbishment at Exeter House Special School. This project has
been flagged up as an underspending scheme throughout the year. This
project began on site later than expected due to land acquisition issues
so work has not progressed as quickly as expected. The budget will be
moved into 2012/2013 as reprogramming. The total budget for the
scheme will be spent but in later financial years than initially assumed.

Other Education schemes includes the settlement of the final account
and retention amounts of Melksham Oak School. As reported in the
previous monitoring report, there is an overspend on the final account at
this school. The revised overspend is £0.089 million, a reduction on the
previous estimate of £0.149 million.

Highways schemes

14.

Highways schemes are broadly on line to final budget with a variation
across the different projects of only £0.285 million against the budget of
£19.944 million. This variation reflects the timing differences between
anticipated works and the actual work undertaken across the many
individual projects. Therefore the entire £0.285 million has been
reprogrammed into 2012/2013 to match the planned expenditure.

Campus and Operational Delivery (CAOD) schemes

15.

16.

17.

The County Hall remodelling phase 1 scheme is progressing well and
the site is still due to open during September 2012. Payments to the
contractors are running slightly behind schedule reflecting the stage of
work completed. Overall the project is on line therefore the variance of
£1.356 million will all be reprogrammed into 2012/2013.

The Hub Programme ICT has seen accelerated spend on the network
infrastructure and equipment to support the development of the new
hubs and the wider COAD schemes. Additional budget has already been
allocated into 2012/2013 to cover the additional spend in this area which
will be used to cover the additional £0.561 million spent during
2011/2012 when this amount is reprogrammed into 2012/2013.

The Operational Estate workstream going forward has been merged with
the Campus workstream so the expenditure in this area is tied up with
the development of the Campuses. As the initial 3 campuses are still in
the development stage this has had a knock on effect onto this area.

Page 10



18.

Therefore the variance of £0.600 million has been reprogrammed into
2012/2013 and will be merged into the Campus workstream during
2012/2013.

The variance on the campuses of £0.662 million is also because work on
site is only just beginning on campuses in Corsham, and awaiting
planning decisions in Salisbury and Melksham. Therefore the whole
variance is being reprogrammed into 2012/2013 to match the planned
expenditure.

Waste Schemes

19.

Waste Transformation schemes as detailed in the previous reports are
well advanced however there is a large commitment remaining to
purchase additional wheelie bins which has been raised but delivery of
this batch will now occur during 2012/2013 rather than in 2011/2012.
Therefore £1.229 million is being reprogrammed into 2012/2013.

Other schemes

20.

21.

22.

Carbon Reduction schemes are allocated to many individual projects.
The remaining budget from 2011/2012 has been reprogrammed into
2012/2013 to finish the committed schemes.

Area Boards grants are the funds allocated to the Area Boards to
support small local schemes such as Speedwatch and Road Safety
schemes, Skate Parks, Scout Huts and other community activities. The
budget has been allocated to schemes following approval by the Area
Boards. More payments were made in the last period of 2011/2012 than
assumed in the Month 10 monitoring report, therefore the variance of
£0.185 million is being reprogrammed into 2012/2013.

Street Scene Vehicles budget as previously reported is over spent due
to the purchase of street scene vehicles required to maintain effective
service delivery, which is part of the annual replacement programme.
Additional funding of £0.167 million from the Department for Transport
was allocated into this area to partially offset the extra costs, however
there is an overspend in this area of £0.418 million.

Funding of Capital Programme

23.

The capital programme is funded by 3 principal sources; grants and
contributions, capital receipts and borrowing. The financing of the spend
in 2011/2012 was made in the following way;

Source of Finance Amount
£m
Grants and contributions 56.227
Capital Receipts 5.596
Borrowing 34.001

Page 11



| Total | 95.824 |

24. As shown in the table above Grants and contributions fund the largest
proportion of the programme, the £56 million includes grants from
government, contributions including developer (S106) and other
contributions including from revenue. The amounts received are largely
as expected - grants from central government to fund areas such as the
Highways schemes and the large education projects are announced well
in advance of the financial year. Other smaller grants and contributions
are often not announced in advance of the year but have been added to
the programme through the monitoring reports under the Director of
Finance delegated authority.

25. Capital receipts received from the proceeds of asset sales are managed
and monitored closely by the Strategic Property team in conjunction with
Finance. Sales of assets are managed and marketed dependant on
market conditions. During 2011/2012 a total of £7.2 million of income
from asset disposals was achieved, which included significant receipts
from the sale of land at Wootton Bassett Stoneover Lane and from
Fisherton Manor/Highbury Avenue School. The figure achieved for
2011/2012 is on line overall to the expected amount for the year which
was set during the 2011/2012 budget setting process. Of the £7.2 million
received during the year, £5.6 million was used in 2011/2012 on capital
expenditure with the remainder being held back to spend on 2012/2013
expenditure.

26. The planned receipts to fund the programme in 2012/2013 as per the
budget setting report for 2012/2013 are around £10 million. Currently it is
expected that this target will be met. This target will be kept under close
review with a view to increasing the target during the year as
negotiations develop. A number of sales have already been received
during the first quarter of 2012/2013, which will be reported during the
monitoring reports for 2012/2013.

27. Borrowing is the final source of funding for the capital programme. The
revenue costs involved in borrowing on repaying the principal and the
interest charges amount to approximately 10% of the amount of
borrowing undertaken. All other sources of funding are utilised before
borrowing is undertaken. The optimal mix of using receipts, grants and
other sources to fund schemes is undertaken before borrowing is
considered to minimise the revenue costs of borrowing.

Proposals

28. To note the general budget additions that are largely grant funded of
£0.685 million per Appendix B and note the outturn position of the
Capital Programme in Appendix A. Note the reprogramming of £7.990
million between 2011/2012 and 2012/2013.

Page 12



Environmental Impact of the Proposal

29. Wiltshire Council is preparing for its mandatory inclusion in the Carbon
Reduction Commitment (CRC); the UK’s mandatory climate change and
energy saving scheme. The objectives of the scheme are to improve
energy efficiency and reduce carbon dioxide emissions. It is calculated
that 79% of the Council’s carbon footprint comes from energy use in
buildings. Capital schemes therefore have the potential to greatly
increase or decrease carbon emissions, for example schemes making
council buildings more energy efficient will reduce the Council’s carbon
footprint. The budget setting process for 2011/2012 assessed the
perceived impact of schemes on the Council’s carbon footprint and built
this into the mechanism for setting the 2012/2013 budget.

Equality and Diversity Impact of the Proposal

30. No equality and diversity issues have been identified arising from this
report

Risk Assessment

31. The capital budget for 2011/2012, as detailed in this report, has been
revised to approximately £103 million. Within this programme there are a
number of potential risks such as from cost overruns or lower than
expected levels of capital receipts. Such issues will be highlighted as
soon as they establish themselves through the monthly reporting
process. Members may wish to bear in mind that the capital programme
has been set for three years and therefore risks will be appraised over
the whole period.

Financial Implications

32. These have been examined and are implicit throughout the report

Legal Implications

33. None have been identified as arising directly from this report.

Michael Hudson
Director of Finance

Report Author: Stephen MacDonald, Principal Accountant (Capital).

Unpublished documents relied upon in the preparation of this report:  NONE
Environmental impact of the recommendations contained in this report: NONE

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



G| abed

Appendix A

Capital Programme budget movements 2011/2012

2011/2012 Budget & Spend Breakdown

Scheme name Month 10 Budget Additional Budget Final Budget Total Spend Variation Overspend/ Reprofiling of
2011/2012 see Appendix B 2011/2012 2011/2012 (Underspend) Schemes
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Education schemes
Wellington Academy 3.646 3.646 3.845 0.199 0.199 0.000
Sarum Academy Salisbury 0.822 0.822 0.340 (0.482) (0.482)
Extended Schools 0.075 0.075 0.070 (0.005) (0.005)
Additional Accommodation 2.927 2.927 3.142 0.215 0.215
NDS Maintenance & Modernisation 5.815 5.815 5.411 (0.404) (0.404)
Devolved Formula Capital 1.281 1.281 1.273 (0.008) (0.008)
Access and Inclusion 0.297 0.297 0.197 (0.100) (0.100)
DCSF Primary Capital Programme 6.632 6.632 6.406 (0.226) (0.226)
DCSF Targeted Capital 14-19 SEN 4.086 4.086 2.713 (1.373) (1.373)
Other Projects New Schools 2.643 2.643 2.667 0.024 0.024
Other Schools Projects - Expansions & Replacements 1.707 1.707 1.665 (0.042) (0.042)
Sure Start 0.365 0.365 0.302 (0.063) (0.063)
Aiming High for Disabled Children 0.095 0.095 0.083 (0.012) (0.012)
Other Education schemes 0.377 0.377 0.444 0.067 0.089 (0.022)
Total Education schemes 30.768 0.000 30.768 28.558 (2.210) 0.288 (2.498)
Highways schemes
Integrated Transport 2.828 0.486 3.314 3.364 0.050 0.050
Bridges & Structural Maintenance 14.091 0.020 14.111 13.951 (0.160) 0.258
Carriageway Repairs 1.443 1.443 1.010 (0.433) (0.433)
Footways, ALA, Land Drainage & Other Minor Schemes 0.903 0.173 1.076 1.334 0.258 (0.160)
Total Highways schemes| 19.265 0.679 19.944 19.659 (0.285) 0.000 (0.285)
Campus and Operational Delivery schemes (CAOD)
Hub Programme Office rationalisation 12.475 12.475 11.119 (1.356) (1.356)
Hub Programme ICT 6.640 6.640 7.201 0.561 0.561
Operational Estate 1.635 1.635 1.035 (0.600) (0.600)
Highway Depot & Office Strategy 0.350 0.350 0.247 (0.103) (0.103)
Libraries, Heritage and Art 0.025 0.025 0.118 0.093 0.093
Libraries RFID Technology 0.547 0.547 0.513 (0.034) (0.034)
Campus 2.000 2.000 1.338 (0.662) (0.662)
Total CAOD schemes| 23.672 0.000 23.672 21.571 (2.101) 0.000 (2.101)




9} ebed

Appendix A

Capital Programme budget movements 2011/2012

2011/2012 Budget & Spend Breakdown

Scheme name Month 10 Budget Additional Budget Final Budget Total Spend Variation Overspend/ Reprofiling of
2011/2012 see Appendix B 2011/2012 2011/2012 (Underspend) Schemes
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Other Property schemes
Buildings Repair & Maintenance 2.228 0.006 2.234 1.853 (0.381) (0.381)
Total Other Property schemes| 2.228 0.006 2.234 1.853 (0.381) 0.000 (0.381)
Housing schemes
Disabled Facilities Grants 2.436 2.436 2.275 (0.161) (0.161)
Corporate other housing grants 0.555 0.555 0.307 (0.248) (0.248)
New Housing 3.436 3.436 3.209 (0.227) (0.227)
HRA - refurbishment of council stock 4.243 4.243 4.029 (0.214) (0.214)
Total Housing schemes| 10.670 0.000 10.670 9.820 (0.850) 0.000 (0.850)
Waste schemes
Waste Transformation 8.226 8.226 6.997 (1.229) (1.229)
\Waste Management & Waste Vehicles 2.423 2423 2.203 (0.220) (0.220)
Total Waste schemes 10.649 0.000 10.649 9.200 (1.449) 0.000 (1.449)
Other schemes
Revenue & Benefits IT System 0.409 0.409 0.461 0.052 0.052
Carbon Reduction 0.773 0.773 0.432 (0.341) (0.341)
Planning IT System 0.127 0.127 0.134 0.007 0.007
Adult Social Care Strategy - Older People, LD & Mental health 1.085 1.085 0.899 (0.186) (0.186)
Social Care Infrastructure & Community Safety 0.027 0.027 0.010 (0.017) (0.017)
Area Boards and LPSA PRG reward grants 0.631 0.631 0.816 0.185 0.185
Economic Development schemes (including Salisbury Vision) 1.360 1.360 1.249 (0.111) (0.111)
Rural Estates 0.050 0.050 0.054 0.004 0.004
Cross Departmental Initiatives & Other Schemes 0.258 0.258 0.246 (0.012) 0.007 (0.019)
Stre_et Scene Vehicles (Including Road Maintenance & Winter 0444 0444 0862 0418 0418 0.000
Vehicles)
Total Other schemes| 5.164 0.000 5.164 5.163 (0.001) 0.425 (0.426)
Total 2011/2012 Programme 102.416 0.685 103.101 95.824 (7.277) 0.713 (7.990)




Director of Finance (CFO) - EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS & REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL

RESOURCES WITHIN THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

CCAC Meeting
Financial Year:

[ 24th July 2012

2011/12

"Adjustment/addition of scheme in the capital programme which has no effect on the net funding position of the programme
i.e. Additional resources available in the form of Grant, Section 106 contributions etc which fund the addition, "

SECTION 1 - DELEGATED CFO POWERS - ADDITIONAL FUNDING

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

NDS Maintenance & Modernisation
2011/12 2012/13
24,900
Schools contributions towards capital works

2013/14

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

LTP Integrated Transport
2011/12 2012/13
440,743

Highways contributions from developers to fund integrated transport schemes

2013/14

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

LTP Integrated Transport
2011/12 2012/13
26,632

Contributions from Town & Parish Councils

2013/14

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

LTP Integrated Transport
2011/12 2012/13
2,500
Contribution from Salisbury District Hospital

2013/14

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

LTP Integrated Transport
2011/12 2012/13
16,340

Additional grant from Sustrans

2013/14

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

Bridges & Structural Maintenance - Surfacing Schemes
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
19,500

Contribution from Westlea Housing to fund road surfacing schemes

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

Bridges & Structural Maintenance - LTP Maintenance
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
1,594
Contribution from BT towards damaged drains

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

Bridges & Structural Maintenance - Bridges
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
50,000
Contribution from British Railways Board towards transfer and demolition of Potterne Road Railway bridge

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

Footways, ALA, Land Drainage & Other Minor Schemes - Petersfinger Park & Ride
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
24,834

Insurance claim settled covering costs previously incurred

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

Footways, ALA, Land Drainage & Other Minor Schemes - Drainage
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
148,252
Environment Agency contribution towards drainage works at Easterton & Crudwell

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

Buildings Repair & Maintenance
2011/12 2012/13
6,000
School contribuiton towards maintenance works at Mere Primary

2013/14

Project Name:
Budget Change:

Funding Source:

Carbon Reduction
2011/12 2012/13
23,000

Revenue contribution towards Olympiad CHP

2013/14

| 684,801 | 99,494 |

Dag@el‘*g?ed Changes Approved by Section 151 Officer Totals




Appendix B

Director of Finance (CFO) - EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS & REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL
RESOURCES WITHIN THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

CCAC Meeting [ 24th July 2012
Financial Year: 2011/12

SECTION 2 - DELEGATED CFO POWERS - REPROGRAMMED EXPENDITURE BETWEEN 2011/2012 AND 2012/2013

"Schemes within the capital programme which require the reprogramming of expenditure between years due to scheme
not progressing as originally anticipated or other circumstances”

Project Name:
Budget Change: 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Funding Source: No Reprogramming of expenditure has been undertaken for the outturn monitoring report. Suggested reprogramming of
expenditure of £7.990 million will be undertaken during the first capital monitoring report in 2012/2013.

0 Total Re-programming between years

SECTION 3 - REQUESTS TO CABINET FOR ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

"Adjustment/addition of scheme to the capital programme which places an additional funding requirement on the programme”

Project Name:

Budget Change: 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
Funding Source: No requests for additional resources are noted for the outturn monitoring report
| 0 | 0 | 0 |Total requests for additional resources

In the exercise of my delegated powers (Section 1 and 2), | hereby authorise the amendments to the Capital Programme
summarised above.

Director of Finance

(CFO): Michael Hudson

DATE: 24th July 2012

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 8

Wiltshire Council

Transformation Board
5™ July 2012

Cabinet (Capital Assets) Committee
24" July 2012

Subject: Transformation Programme: Review of Programme Spend and
Project Outcomes

Cabinet Member: Councillor Stuart Wheeler — Transformation, Culture, Leisure and
Libraries

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

In 2009 Cabinet endorsed two major elements of the Transformation Programme, namely
the Office Hub strategy and the Operational Estate portfolio of ‘initial projects’. Both
programmes aim to improve and modify the property estate to create accommodation that
supports staff to work more efficiently and effectively and where their customers need them.
It also aims to save revenue costs and to reduce carbon emissions through rationalisation.

In 2011 Cabinet approved the Information Services Technology Plan and the Depot Facilities
Strategy elements of the programme. The former seeks to provide ‘work anywhere’
technology in the form of infrastructure and equipment. The latter seeks to improve and
reduce duplication in the depot estate following amalgamation of services since LGR.

The report includes a high level financial summary and the appendices provide a detailed
update on the projects completed and in progress within each strand of the programme.

The programme has generated significant investment in the Wiltshire economy creating local
jobs (over 100 on the County Hall project alone) and the release of pre-existing sites for
inward economic investment. It is on target to deliver gross annual savings of £10m across
all the workstreams and these savings are embedded in the council’s overall budget setting
process.

Proposal
Members note that the initial phases of the Transformation Programme are nearing
conclusion and the successful outcomes that have been achieved.

Reason for Proposal
To baseline the current programme progress in readiness to move forward with the next
phases and highlight delivery so far.

Dr Carlton Brand
Corporate Director

1
Page 19



Wiltshire Council

Transformation Board
5™ July 2012

Cabinet (Capital Assets) Committee
24" July 2012

Subject: Transformation Programme: Review of Programme Spend and

Project Outcomes

Cabinet Member: Councillor Stuart Wheeler — Transformation, Culture, Leisure and

Libraries

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1.

To provide a comprehensive update on some of the Transformation Programme’s key
improvement projects.

Background

2.

The Transformation Programme of improvement and rationalisation of the Council’s
estate is divided into three main areas, Operational, Hubs and Depots plus the
complementary ICT Programme. The first tranche of the campus programme
(Melksham, Corsham and Salisbury) was approved by Cabinet in December 2011 and
represents the next important phase of community led estate improvements for the
Council. Progress on and outcomes delivered through this programme will be reported
separately as appropriate.

Property disposals, which are entirely predicated on the successful delivery of the
Transformation Programme and are a key component of it, are presented and discussed
in an accompanying paper to this Committee today.

Operational Estate

4.

In December 2009 Cabinet confirmed its support for several initial priorities which sought
to rationalise properties within the Council’s operational estate in order to provide
accommodation fit for services to work with their clients and customers. The indicative
programme budget for this work was £10.4m.

Those initial proposals, together with the ongoing operational service reviews and the
drive for localism in the way we deliver services, were the enabler to the campus
strategy. This strategy places all of Wiltshire’s operational estate ‘in scope’ for review
and rationalisation by communities who will work with the Council to define the services
they wish to receive at a local level.

2
Page 20



6.

The majority of those initial priority projects have been completed and Appendix A
provides a recap of the proposals, an update on the projects and costs and the resulting
improved outcomes.

Hub Offices

7.

10.

In October 2009 Cabinet approved the hub office programme based on the
refurbishment of four existing offices and the closure of around 95 sub-offices. The hubs
would later be supplemented by a network of drop in bases in community areas as part
of the campus programme.

The programme was designed to deliver a fully modernised office estate within three and
half years, as well as providing the infrastructure to maximise better service outcomes,
such as improved ICT, ‘work anywhere’ telephony and the HR policies and procedures
required to support managers and staff to work more flexibly.

One of the fundamental outputs required of the programme was to dispose of buildings
thereby raising receipts and reducing running costs which would ultimately finance the
programme. A separate paper on this agenda will look at disposals in more detail and
highlight the alternative uses Members have agreed for some scheduled disposals.

Appendix B to this paper summarises the current position of the elements of the
programme covered by the paper both financially and in terms of outcomes.

Depot Strategy

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

In February 2011 CCAC approved the Depot Facilities Strategy and Implementation Plan
which would deliver a reduced and improved depot and salt store network across the
County to better meet the operational needs of the service.

The plan also identified other council services, in addition to the core depot services, that
could be accommodated within the new sites and that discussions were ongoing about
their inclusion.

New salt stores have been completed at High Post, Marlborough and Royal Wootton
Bassett and site sales have completed at Amesbury and Marlborough. Other site sales
are in progress.

The capital programme currently includes a balance of £8.255m for 2012/13 to deliver
the remainder of the plan, namely three new depots (including salt stores - North, South
and central Wiltshire) and salt stores in Mere and Warminster.

Appendix C summarises the position on the depot strategy and recommends a revised
approach.

ICT Programme

16.

Since LGR in Wiltshire and the inception of the Transformation Programme over £14m
has been, or is being, invested in information technology.

3
Page 21



17.

18.

The essence of the approved Information Services Technology Plan is to ensure we
have robust technologies, policies and procedures in place to allow all staff, partners,
volunteers and residents to access relevant information where it is operationally
necessary, without compromising our requirement to protect sensitive data and
information.

Appendix D to this report summarises what has been invested and achieved.

Financial Summary

19.

Project by project investment information which provides a detailed breakdown of the
nature of each project and what it has achieved for services, our partners and our
customers is included in the appendices.

20. The following table is a high level summary of the Transformation budget:

Budget Transfers Revised

Workstream Approval in/(out) Budget Notes

£000 £000 £000

Hub Programme 55,785 (5,500) 50,285 1

ICT 12,930 1,000 13,930 2

Operational Estate 10,400 (2,000) 8,400 3

Depots Review 13,552 - 13,552

TOTAL 92,667 6,5-00 86,167

Notes:

1. £3m from the indicative County Hall allocation was transferred into Campus Programme
and £2.5m was returned back to the Corporate Programme following the decision to close
Browfort.

2.

The original indicative allocation for ICT relating to the Transformation Programme was

increased by a revenue contribution from ICT as part of the insourcing of Steria. The
subsequent increase is a result of reallocation of resource within the overall programme
allocation to deliver the accelerated development of the infrastructure to support the wider
Transformation Programme. This includes the closure of Browfort, the development and
deployment of the Council's Sharepoint solution to support electronic document storage and
management, provision of electronic meeting room technology and the Council’s initial Cloud
offering in line with the Information Services Technology Plan and CLT approvals.

3.

£2m from the indicative Operational Estate allocation has been transferred to support the

Campus Programme as any operational requirements will be now be addressed as part of any
campus proposals/design.

General note: All programmes will be re-phased to reflect the current position & planned
spending which will generate revenue savings.

4
Page 22



21. The planned investment and actual spend on the programme is projected at just over
£84m. This releases a £2m surplus from the programme. However, a separate funding
approval will be required to complete the Melksham depot and those in the North and
South of the county (subject to further review) and any risk elements associated with
projects that are about to commence or that are in progress (for e.g. the Monkton Park
project is still at the feasibility stage, County Hall (though the contract is let) is potential
entering the ‘riskier’ phase two stage of works to the old building), are unlikely to be
offset within the programme budget.

Environmental and Climate Change considerations

22. The rationalisation of our office estate has the potential to reduce our property related
carbon emissions by 40% over the life of the programme, the most significant impact of
this programme of work will be from 2013/14 when staff move back into the refurbished
County Hall building and the Shurnhold offices close.

23. The Information Services Technology Plan aims to ‘Green IT’ by rolling out efficient
devices and by decommissioning machines and data centres. The Depot programme
has set a target of reducing estate related carbon emissions by 20% and this will be
developed as part of the ongoing business case.

24. The initial projects developed for the operational estate programme, whilst not
specifically designed to contribute to the carbon reduction programme, have all resulted
in improved building design and specification which enhances the opportunity to make
the estate more carbon efficient. Bourne Hill achieved a BREEAM excellent rating and
we aim to achieve this for County Hall.

25. The effect of ‘work anywhere’ technology on staff behaviour and work patterns will need
to be monitored in order to fully capture the non-estate related carbon benefits.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

26. One of the principal aims of the programme was to address inequality in the standards of
the Authority’s estate. All building works have been undertaken to the new Part M of the
Building Regulations and to the access standard BS8300, the highest standard of
accessibility for individuals with restricted mobility. A dedicated access consultant works
with the design teams where necessary. In line with policy, fours suitable build projects
have also included Changing Places toilets which are accessible to the public.

27. The network of working locations is designed to complement the Customer Access
strategy.

28. On completion, County Hall will be fully accessible for the first time.
Risk Assessment

29. The programme, its management and its relationships with the wider organisation is well
established. The programme continues to report to the Transformation Board and risk

5
Page 23



management is a standing item. Several projects are either at the early stages of
development or are entering a key phase where risk factors may increase but these
continue to be monitored.

30. Regular reports are made to CCAC and the programme budget is monitored and
reported via the Council’s capital monitoring arrangements.

Legal Implications

31. For projects that are yet to be commissioned and implemented, legal advice needs to be
sought at an early stage in any underlying transactions to ensure that decisions are
made at the right level and in a timely fashion and that risks are minimised before
contracts and arrangements need to be signed off.

Conclusion

32. Over the last 3 to 4 years the transformation of both the property estate and the
technological infrastructure that supports the workforce, partners and communities has
been unrivalled in any Local Authority. The initial phases of the programme are nearing
conclusion and the wider benefits to the organisation are beginning to be counted.

33. The Council continues to work with the DCLG and others regarding the LGA sponsored
Capital Assets Pathfinder and has hosted a meeting of this group at its Bourne Hill office.

34. The Council is currently working with the RSA in relation to its Campus programme and
flagship community engagement model via the Community Operations Boards.

Dr Carlton Brand Mark Stone

Corporate Director Transformation Director
Report Author:

Sarah Ward

Head of Strategic Asset Management and Corporate Build Programme
2" July 2012

Appendices:

Appendix A — Operational Estate update
Appendix B — Office Hub Programme update
Appendix C — Depot Facilities Strategy update
Appendix D — ICT Programme update

6
Page 24



Transformation Programme Appendix A

Operational Estate Update

Recap of Proposals

1.

Children and Families Resource Centres

Working with the Children and Families Service, a specification for the County Wide re-
provision of Children and Families Resource Centres was developed. These were to be
provided in the North, West and South of the county and were to replace accommodation
that was extremely poor and expensive to maintain but also to support a new operating
model. The service led the specification and the detailed design for the new facilities
which provide a functional yet homely setting in which children and young families, in
times of great stress, can build relationships with each other with the support of
education and care specialists.

Learning Disability Community based facilities

In support of the ‘Better Days’ programme a network of core facilities, supplemented by
community based provision, for use by vulnerable adults was proposed. Whilst the
majority of these will be provided by the campus programme, there was an urgent need
to establish some centres ahead of this. Proposals were brought forward for
Chippenham and Salisbury which have also released valuable sites for disposal.

Children’s Homes — Complex Needs

It was identified that the lack of an ‘in house’ facility was creating a pressure to
accommodate some children in Out of County placements which, in the longer term, can
undermine the locally based social, educational and family networks that are essential to
their general wellbeing. The proposal in December 09 was to develop two small (three
to four bed, one in the north, one in the south) residential units to reduce this pressure.

However, the DCE working group have subsequently set a new strategy for creating
local placements with young people and they have achieved success in reducing the
numbers of young people requiring residential placements in the county. It was therefore
identified that, in the South of the county, there is no longer a need for separate
residential provision.

The working group also continued looking at the specification for the service and have
developed an enhanced model that will provide a dedicated support centre rather than a
residential facility — the “Aspire Centre”. The centre will support children who are
estranged from their families and for whom without specific intervention, reunification will
not be an option. The centre will target the most vulnerable young people, provide a safe
haven, a nurturing supportive environment. A property acquired in Melksham for the
‘north’ residential home can be adapted for this purpose and plans are currently being
developed for this. The Aspire Centre will cost more than the indicative cost of a
residential home but will be met from within existing provision for the review of the
operational estate.

Children and families — 16 plus accommodation

The refurbishment of the pre-existing but unused Towpath Road residential unit for use
by several young adults releasing their current accommodation to help reduce the overall

7
Page 25



number of out of county placements, reducing long term costs and better preparing the
individuals for leaving care.

5. Youth Services

The sale of the Bridge Centre in Chippenham has been agreed subject to contract.
Based on a well defined Youth strategy for the town, the arts and media functions for
young people have been co-located with the new Learning Disability day service at the
Olympiad. Other facilities will be provided as part of the next phase of the Chippenham
campus development.

For some years the Town Council and young people in Wilton had searched for suitable
accommodation for a Youth Centre. An opportunity arose to retain a small area of land
on the site of the former Middle School. A modular building has been constructed on the
site to fulfil this need.

In other areas, including Salisbury, the Youth Service is working closely with the Shadow
Community Operations Boards to ensure the facilities they require are included in the
campus programme and the 11-19 Commissioning Strategy supports this approach.

6. Schemes not now proceeding

The provision of two residential units for children with Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD)
is now not proceeding as a result of service redesign meaning that the flexibility of the
already provided facilities can support service requirements.

The adult care service has reconsidered its approach to providing facilities for people
with dementia and their carers. Proposals in lieu of the planned Dementia Cafes may
come forward at a later date but are not required at this time.

7. Other priority schemes

During the course of the programme a number of opportunities have arisen and been
taken that directly support the delivery of the transformation strategy:

a. Warminster Town Council’s planned redevelopment of the Assembly Rooms
provided a unique opportunity to provide hot desk space and a range of other
facilities for Wiltshire staff and partners to work alongside Town Council
colleagues. WC contributed funding and some technical support to the Town
Council to develop this successful hub facility in the centre of town.

b. Responding to the wishes of local people, the Council purchased the Melksham
House site in the centre of the town as its site for the new Melksham Campus.

c. Inline with Cabinet policy, wherever space allows, publicly accessible Personal
Care Rooms are being provided which are over and above the specification for
‘regular’ disabled toilets. These facilities are being registered on the Changing
Places website and will create a network of accessible environments for children
and adults with complex disabilities across the county.

d. The Council successfully ‘broke’ the PFI arrangement for Monkton Park, taking it
fully into public ownership.

Conclusion
8. The progress made on the projects described above represent a significant step forward

in improving and rationalising the operational estate. It also provides a foundation for the
further development of campuses based on close working relationships with services,

8
Page 26



partner organisations and local communities. It is believed that the areas delivered thus
far represent the most significant property rationalisation programme anywhere in the
public sector.

9
Page 27



gz obed

OPERATIONAL ESTATE — DECEMBER 09 TO JULY 12 — Indicative budget £10.4m

rooms and a training kitchen ahead of the Salisbury
Campus proposal in order to vacate Sarum Day Centre
which has been sold.

TOTAL
SCHEME NAME WHAT WAS PROVIDED INVESTED | OUTCOMES DELIVERED
£000

Former Hayburn Wyke Guest House purchased and

refurbished to provide an Independent Family suite

(intensive support for families and Crisis Intervention

, facilities), 4 contact rooms offering functional, family The home like facilities at each Resource

g Salisbury Resource Centre settings for families to receive support, office 925 Centre have helped families feel safe to
g accommodation including a hot desking room for express their emotions and share their
) visiting staff. It opened in February 2012. views about their situation. Many case
o studies that cite the use of the art spaces,
5 . the kitchens and the contact rooms as
2 Melb_gurze House purchased anl? refurl?lshded fco. having a direct positive impact on the
& %:Zti/eentiocnogfi‘fst ;%%rrc];%iévgzszcecoxtasgﬁsof;lzlzrden outcomes of intervention are being
» | Devizes Resources Centre ) ) ) 1,119 | recorded. Ultimately the facilities and the
E has just been completed. Centre opened in September services provided from them have helped
e 2011 families find the right support and living
6 — solutions, as well as providing for crisis

Existing centre at Rutland Crescent was completely intervention.

refurbished to provide 5 contact rooms, two self

Trowbridge Resource Centre contained crisis intervention units and office space. It 224

opened in March 2011

New day centre opened in early 2011 in the converted The new shared community spaces

studio hall in the Olympiad Leisure Centre, Monkton support new style of service delivery

. . Park. Facilities include music and media rooms, multi providing choice and flexibility. Services

[%2])
2 \C{Q:ﬂﬁenham Olympiad LD & purpose activity rooms, training kitchen, ICT and 762 | can now offer a wide range of structured
S meeting space, large multi purpose hall. All the and informal sessions aimed to maintain or
_8 facilities are being shared with the Youth Service which increase people’s independence, skills and
o will shortly vacate the Bridge Centre. quality of life as well as offering more
_g’ informal choices to those who have lower
% The former planning office has been converted to support needs. The locations support work
ko Wyndham Road LD provide temporary office space, multi purpose activity 08 with individuals to look at how they would

like to spend their time on meaningful
community focussed activities or in one of
the bases.

10




62 obed

House on Spa Road purchased and refurbishment

Plans being developed are key to the

Melksham Spa Road plans and programme to create an ‘Aspire Centre’ are 750 redesianing of service deliver

© being finalised for a possible completion in March 2013 gning Y-

"g A unique facility that helps previously

-'% Refurbishment of existing residential facility has been looked after young pgople acquire skills in

3T . o preparation for living independently,

o owpath Rd completed and a lease to a provider to run the facility 49 X g L !

. : experiment safely with their increasing
was signed in 2011. oo
freedom and develop responsibilities
associated with adulthood.
Two new modular buildings on the site of the former The Town Council and Wiltshire Council

- school: Youth Services building includes meeting worked together to provide a new and

= | Wilton Youth & Public Protection | rooms, office, toilet facilities and storage. 513 much needed local facility for young

3 . : e .

S | store Public Protection building provides secure storage people. Secure bespoke storage for the
facilities for goods and measuring equipment, office, Public Protection teams allows them to
toilet and wash areas. work flexibly in the south of the county.
Funding contribution to major refurbishment scheme :I'he equipment ’and faflc'“t'es _support the,

L . ; work anywhere’ and ‘work with partners
Warmi providing shared access to office space, meeting . .
arminster Assembly Rooms . Y 153 | strategies of the council and support
rooms and personal care room. The facility officially . : o )
. working with communities to improve
opened in February 2012.
outcomes.
Purchase of site to enable development of the town Successful joint working between local
Purchase of Melksham House centre campus plus ongoing feasibility and enabling 397 | partners and business. Foundation for
work. delivering the aspirations of the community.

2 | purchase of Tisbury Nadder Sch Purchase of site to enable development of the Tisbury 650 Total cost will be reflected in the Tisbury

5 campus campus proposal
Grant contribution to Wiltshire School of Gymnastics, Delivering on the council’s commitment to
based on Bowerhill Industrial Estate, to extend its floor improve leisure facilities throughout the

Melksham School of Gymnastics space by more than 30 per cent. The space W.I|| allow 400 county and, in this _Olympl_c year, sgpport
for an alternative gymnastics sprung floor and increase for a locally led project which will give even
the number of areas for beams, bars, vaulting and more people the opportunity to enjoy
trampolining. exercise

Other enabling works in advance 296

of campus programme

TOTAL INVESTED 6,266

11




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Transformation Programme Appendix B

Office Hub Programme Update

Recap of Proposals

1.

In Salisbury the Bourne Hill office refurbishment and extension was in progress
prior to Unitary vesting day and work completed in May 2010. Staff from the
majority of offices in the Salisbury area moved into the building in October 2010.
A customer services office was established in Milford Street which serves as the
public facing element of the hub.

In Trowbridge work commenced on a two phase refurbishment of County Hall in
May 2011. Staff will move into the newly refurbished MECH wing this summer
and both the new library and the customer service desk will be open to the public
on 12" September. The second phase of refurbishment is scheduled to complete
in the summer of 2013. Staff have been decanted to Bradley Road and to
Shurnhold during the project — both buildings will be disposed of following the
relocation of staff.

In February this year Cabinet supported the re-evaluation of the four hub model
to reflect staff and cultural changes within the council. A customer services
contact centre is to be provided in Devizes to ensure continuity of services in
Devizes following the decision to close Browfort.

A feasibility study has recently completed on the work required to maximise the
use of the Monkton Park office in Chippenham. Key findings of the study are:

a. ltis possible to increase the desk capacity of the building from around 340
to 540 which, using a ratio of 3 people to 2 desks, potentially allows over
800 FTE staff to work from the Chippenham hub.

b. Some of the mechanical and electrical services need improving particularly
additional cooling and better building management systems and controls.

c. Toilet facilities will require remodelling to increase their number.

d. Both the study and staff have identified that the work spaces on each floor
are segregated by the atrium space which impedes flexible working. In
order to improve the flow around the building and to create additional
breakout and informal meeting spaces wide link bridges are proposed
across the Atrium on each level.

e. Further detailed work is required to look at the options for relocating and
improving the ICT data centre or to consider remote hosting.

f. Subject to a more detailed appraisal of the outline programme it is
believed that the work can be phased so that it will not be necessary to
decant large groups of staff and that work could complete in summer
2013.

12

Page 31



g. The cost of the refurbishment including required investment in IT and multi
function meeting rooms is in the region of £3m which is within the original
indicative budget for this scheme. The work will not limit any further
development plans at a later date.

Conclusion

5. The hub programme is delivering modern fit for purpose office facilities which
support flexible working and integration across a wide range of partners including
the Police, HMRC and Natural England. The programme is on track to complete
within budget and on schedule, and due to an organisational shift to flexible
working, we have achieved the required outcomes with one less major hub
location.

13

Page 32



cg abed

Hub Programme

SCHEME NAME

WHAT WAS/IS BEING PROVIDED

TOTAL
INVESTED
£000's

OUTCOMES DELIVERED

Award winning office space and

Bourne Hill flexible working environment for over 13,601
500 FTE staff
Modern flexible office
accommodation for over 2000 FTE

County Hall staff, new Trowbridge Library and 24,894

registrars office, wide range of public
and customer facilities

Enabling works including Shurnhold and

Decant space for staff vacating
County Hall, minor improvements at

A network of hub offices where teams can
base their activities but from which they can
work flexibly to meet the needs of the
customer.

other sites other offices to enable decant and 2,531
team co-location
Refurbishment of existing office
Monkton Park space to allow for 200 additional work
) s : e 3,092
stations and flexible working facilities
Essential H&S and fire precaution
. works to allow continued occupation Ensuring that Children and young adults can
Grosvenor House, Salisbury - . : 59 :
of facility until the Salisbury campus continue
is delivered.
26 Endless St — Coroner’s Office Minor refurblshment t.q prowde office 50 Improved Co.roner service which is supported
and court Hearing facilities by the Council
Customers Access Point and Refurbished space in Town Centre :
. . . ! . 1,200 | Works in progress
supplementary service base in Devizes location for customer services
Minor refurbishment of office space to
Kennet House, Devizes provide extra workstations for staff 62 | Works in progress
and increase occupation levels
TOTAL INVESTED 45,489

14




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Transformation Programme Appendix C
Depot Facilities Strategy

Salt Stores — Progress and update

1. Three salt stores have been completed at High Post, Marlborough and Royal Wootton
Bassett. The remaining two (not included on the main depot sites) are required in Mere
and Warminster.

2. Original brief for the salt stores in 2010 was to simply over roof the supply in order to
alleviate around 25% of losses from runaway. The cost of over roofing was anticipated
to be in the region of £375k per site.

3. During the winter of 2010/11 an environmental incident occurred at Warminster depot
that led to extra drainage requirements being stipulated by the Environment Agency (EA)
in order to avoid pollution and associated fines. In addition, a detailed specification and
feasibility study for each site in May 11 concluded

a. that the access arrangements on the sites should be reassessed to improve
safety and productivity and to allow for increased (salt) stock holding targets

b. very poor health and safety standards in the office/welfare buildings should be
addressed — some space was uninhabitable (current maintenance backlog is
over £840k)

c. Historic problems with fuel storage leaks should be addressed as part of the
project

4. Based on the revised specification the gross capital cost of completing the salt barns
phase of the depot strategy will be in the region of £2.2m.

Main Depots - Progress and update

5. A site search exercise has been carried out in both the North and South of the County
which included an appraisal of existing council sites and a public ‘call for sites’ via local
newspapers and estates media.

6. This resulted in a reasonable response where two sites in each area appear favourable.
An appraisal of these sites and proposed schemes are being explored and the proposals
will be presented at a later date.

7. Inthe centre of the County the proposed redevelopment of the existing depot site in
Melksham has been the subject of some considerable changes in scope since the initial
definition of needs were established:

a. Restructuring of services within highways and streetscene; the Waste
improvement and investment programme (including additional vehicles); an
increase in the specification for the salt store area required by the EA, the

15

Page 35



8.

inclusion of street lighting and bridge maintenance team needs have increased
the overall space needs.

b. Other Wiltshire services such as the Wiltshire and Swindon Learning Resources
and the Library Stock Unit have long required relocation from their Trowbridge
site and these have been incorporated into the proposal. The core strategy also
sets out the requirement for an Archaeology store which has been included in the
initial feasibility work.

c. The proposed development of the site is a catalyst for the wider economic
development potential of the area through the release of a significant tranche of
development land. Constraints affecting this development (e.g. relocation of the
Household Recycling Centre (HRC) within the new depot area and the planning
of a longer narrower site than envisaged) have also increased the scope and
cost.

d. New requirements for space have also emerged for partners such as the Police
Authority and the Probation service. Whilst these have been considered no costs
have been discussed and no formal agreements to pursue the options have been
entered into.

Indications are that the capital costs associated with the increases in scope will
significantly affect the business case and it therefore requires review.

Conclusions

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Completion of the majority of the salt store programme represents a significant milestone
in aligning services since LGR. Work continues to complete the separate salt store
programme at an estimated cost of £2.2m. A budget will be also be allocated to fund
any enabling works required to ensure the developments in Melksham can go ahead as
planned.

The completion of the three new depots will make the current business case unviable.

However, both the highways and the waste contracts are due for renewal within the next
two to three years and these services are in the middle of systems reviews and
transformational change. As yet, the effect of this activity has not fully impacted the
original depot strategy (2010) or the specification of need.

The Transformation Team is working closely with the Service Directors concerned and
will be revisiting the original business case for depots to ensure, for example, that a 4
depot network is still valid in the light of recent and future service changes.

A revised business case will be presented to the Capital Assets Committee towards the
end of the year which will reflect any operational redesign requirements within a long
term depot strategy.

16

Page 36



Transformation Programme

ICT Programme Update

Recap of the proposals

Appendix D

1. The Transformation Programme is dramatically changing the way staff work. The
rationalisation of buildings and the drive towards working with our customers where they
need us has made the workforce significantly more mobile. There is an expectation that
staff can carry out their jobs from any location — at home, on the road or in any building.

2. The IS Technology Plan is a programme of over 200 projects that are designed to
improve the business capabilities of the organisation, maximise staff flexibility and to
ensure the Authority and its information remains current, secure and dependable whilst

providing long term cost reductions and rationalisation.

3. The plan is primarily focussed on making improvements to our infrastructure, our
equipment and by investing in new technologies.

ICT Transformation Programme — Budget £13.93m

TOTAL
SCHEME NAME WHAT WAS PROVIDED INVESTED | OUTCOMES DELIVERED
£000
Amalgamating networks and
% Network Connectivity | Direct Access, Public Sector Allows users to connect
S Network developments securely to the network
£ The Bradley Road data centre 3,159 | from any location.
I | Server rationalisation | has been decommissioned Simplifying and improving
£ | and virtualisation and over 65% of our server our security environment
estate has been ‘virtualised’. has made it easier to
Laptops - Windows 7 Laptops configured with a share information with
€ | SOE Windows 7 standard operating each other and with
Q environment have been rolled partner organisations
VOIP telephon . .
_S. Intearate dpDev?/ces out together with Voice over IP 10,112 | which fosters collaborative
= 9 o phones, video conferencing working. Standardised
Wi | Follow me printing and instant messaging technology and equipment
Homeworking rollout services via Lync. has ensured the adoption
Technical Supportto | Staff resources, consultancy 1490 of new working practices.
whole programme and other professional fees ’
Sub-Total 14,761
Budget identified for 12/13 to Anticipated outcome is to
; o transfer some IT
continue migration to Cloud. .
o infrastructure management
o Significant number of staff to a service organisation
‘5 | Cloud technology migrated to Office 365 and . ’
S . - s 1,000 | allowing WC to focus on
c | Sharepoint roll out working ‘in the cloud’ as part of :
o the trial core bus]ness processes.
o Sharepoint continues
Advances in Document
progress towards the
management ‘ o
paper-less’ office
Total 15,761

17

Page 37




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Agenda ltem 9

Wiltshire Council

Cabinet (Capital Assets) Committee
24 July 2012

Subject: Property Disposals

Cabinet member: Councillor Toby Sturgis - Waste, Property, Environment
and Development Control Services

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

The report updates members on progress related to property disposals during
the business plan period to date, and outlines plans to deliver further disposals
during the remaining period of the business plan. Headlines contained in the
report:

a. Property sales achieved thus far in the business plan period to date are
approximately £8m, with a plan for receipts of £14m in the current
financial year

b. A total of 21 Community Asset Transfers have been completed to date,
with a further 50 in the pipeline;

The current position on property disposals in a range of categories is highlighted
to clarify the current position, including clarification of the list of disposals which
constitute the capital receipts programme.

An interim capital programme gateway process is discussed and proposed.

Proposal

That members:

a. Note the progress made to date on property sales and community asset
transfers in line with the expectations of the business plan;

b. Review the detailed list of property disposals contained in Appendix F;

c. Confirm their authority to proceed with the disposal of properties listed in
Appendix F, and to delegate the completion of necessary legal transactions
to Dr Carlton Brand, Corporate Director, or as permitted by the scheme of
delegation;

d. That Members review the attached interim gateway process at Appendix G
and approve its immediate adoption.

Reason for Proposal

To provide clarity as to the full extent of the approved programme of property
disposals, and to confirm that all necessary legal authority is in place to
complete property transactions in a timely manner.

Page 39



A review of the end to end process for capital bidding is underway as part of the
development of a 10 year Asset Management Strategy, an interim gateway
process is required to ensure consistency, sustainability and to reduce risk.

Dr Carlton Brand
Corporate Director

Page 40




Wiltshire Council

Cabinet (Capital Assets) Committee
24 July 2012

Subject: Property Disposals

Cabinet member: Councillor Toby Sturgis - Waste, Property, Environment

and Development Control Services

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1.

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to members on the
current status of the Property Disposal programme, and the plans for
upcoming disposals. The report also seeks to confirm and clarify the
authority in place from members to proceed with specific sales.

Background

2.

The current Capital Programme position is included in Appendix A. This
demonstrates the level of capital receipts planned within the programme
for the period 2012/13-15/16.

The Council’s Business Plan includes a target for capital receipts of £50m
over four years. If receipts are not generated, are delayed or sites are
used for other purposes then borrowing has to be undertaken to replace
the lost capital receipt. Every additional £1m of borrowing that has to be
undertaken results in approximately £0.1m additional revenue costs of
borrowing.

The council is already committed to borrowing an additional £110m over
the next 3 years which will equate to revenue costs of borrowing of around
£30m per annum from 2015/2016.

Main Considerations for the Council

Property Sales Achieved

5.

Progress on disposals since the start of the business plan period are
summarised in the table below. Detail of individual property disposals are
contained in Appendix B — Completed Sales. The value of these sales is
in the public domain and would available through the land registry.
However, a number of sites have been sold on a “subject to contract” or
“subject to planning consent” basis. These are listed and valued in
Appendix C - Sales Subject to Contract.

Page 41



Year Receipts Planned Actual receipts

2011/12 £8m £7.118m

2012/13 £14m £0.939m

It should be noted that discrepancies between planned and actual receipts
does not necessarily indicate a reduction in value of receipts achieved.
The schedule of sales sold subject to contract indicates that frequently the
final receipt of capital may take longer to realise, but this delay enables a

stronger receipt to be realised.

Community Asset Transfers

7.

A total of 21 transfers were completed during 2011/12 and to date this

financial year. In addition to these completed transfers, a further 51

applications or enquiries are being actively progressed at present. The
recent policy amendment which categorises applications depending on the
complexity or strategic nature of the asset has proved effective in ensuring
that transfers progress quickly, and in an appropriate manner. Transfers
continue to be a convoluted process, largely due to the work required by

both the Council and community bodies to carry out the requisite legal
work to complete a transfer. A full schedule of completed and live
transfers is contained in Appendix D.

Key transfers in progress or completed which of note by members are
described below:

a. Bowerhill Football Fields — transfer of this land was completed in

June, to coincide with the designation of the playing fields as a
Queen Elizabeth field. Mechanisms are in place to secure the
delivery of the A350/ Lancaster Road link road, together with the
reprovision of the changing pavilion to facilitate this.

. Trowbridge Town Hall — the group are making good progress in

obtaining early buy-in from potential funding bodies. An update
report is proposed to be made to the Committee in September by
the group to enable members to consider their approach to further
support for the group’s process of securing funding. Information on
the group’s progress can be found at www.trowbridgetownhall.org

. Playing fields north of Dunch Lane, Melksham — in conjunction with

the delivery of the Melksham Campus project and the planned sale
of the former George Ward School site, a lease is to be agreed with
Melksham Rugby Club to secure their use of the playing fields for
September 2012. A full community asset transfer will follow in line
with the resolution of a section 106 agreement and the mechanism
for provision of changing and parking facilities.

. Urchfont Manor — Cabinet gave its commitment that Officers would

work with the local community as far as practicable to protect the
community’s continued use of parts of the Council’s landholdings at
Urchfont and this will result in further asset transfers or legal
agreements that secure the use of Oakfrith Wood, the
recreation/school playing field and the cricket field by the
community groups.

Page 42



Surplus Properties identified for alternative Council uses

9.

10.

A number of properties previously identified for disposal and included in
the capital receipts programme, are subject to decisions by this committee
that alternative Council uses will be investigated further. An intrinsic part
of these decisions were an acceptance of the subsequent loss of a
potential market value receipt in lieu of development of the site for
alternative Council uses. Examples of these are listed, and the valuations
of these sites is contained in Appendix E for review in part 2 of the
meeting.

a. Burnham House, Malmesbury — Extra Care Housing

b. Browfort Office site, Devizes — Extra Care Housing

c. Middlefields/ Hungerdown Lane, Chippenham — Extra Care
Housing/ Affordable Housing

d. Various sites — Affordable housing PFI sites, West Wiltshire

e. 26/28 Endless Street, Salisbury — Coroners Service

In addition, a number of properties previously identified for sale within the
Capital Programme, have since been deferred pending completion of
other programmes of works. These are:

f. Pennyfarthing House, Salisbury — retained due to location of CCTV
operation, and use for customer care accommodation. Some
space is also leased to Visit Wiltshire with an expiry date in 2015.

g. 61 Wyndham Road — temporary relocation of Learning Disabilities
Day Care Centre from Old Sarum pending future relocation to a
campus at Five Rivers. Note: the capital receipt received from the
sale of the former Sarum Centre, is legally conditioned upon its use
in re-providing the Day Care function within a Campus
development.

Upcoming Property Disposals

11.

12.

A full list of planned property disposals is contained in Appendix F. This
list is divided into two parts:

e Live —those property disposals which are actively being marketed
or prepared for market

e Pending — those property disposals which are confirmed to be
within the scope of the capital receipts programme, on which
background preparations are taking place but no active marketing
firmly planned, eg. properties that will remain occupied or in use at
this time.

Members are asked to review this list and confirm their acceptance of its
contents, and thus provide authority to proceed with property disposals in
a timely manner to achieve the expectations of the capital programme.
This does not preclude alternative uses of methods of disposal for these

Page 43



14.

15.

sites being proposed, but such proposals would need to follow the capital
programme gateway process described below.

Mansion House and Library site, Corsham — these properties have been
the subject of previous reports to the Committee. Following the
completion of the marketing process completed in April 2012, no
compliant offers were received. Officers recommend that the property be
marketed after the building contract for the Corsham Community Campus
has been awarded. At that point in time, more detailed knowledge will
exist about the delivery dates of the building and the consequential
relocation dates for the youth service and library. As a result of this
greater clarity of position, the marketing of the property can be conducted
without the added complexities created by a deferred date for vacant
possession, and without complex arrangements related to maintenance of
the existing buildings. The Youth and Library services propose to
continue to operate from their existing locations until their new space
within the completed campus is available for their use. Strategic Property
Services are working proactively with the respective services to ensure
that essential maintenance work is planned sensibly, in order to keep
functions operational without undue costs being incurred on the fabric of
the building.

Urchfont Manor — Knight Frank have been appointed as sales agents for
this property. Advice provided by Knight Frank recommends investing
heavily in legally securing the interests of the various community groups
and third parties involved in elements of the wider property holdings. Itis
also recommended that the optimum time to start a marketing campaign
will be in September, to avoid the Iull in the market created by the summer
period. Officers concur with this approach, in order to simplify the process
of securing a sale at a later date, and to ensure the maximum level of
interest is obtained in the property.

Capital Programme Gateway Process

16.

17.

18.

The Council currently has gateways and bidding processes for capital
schemes, but this is not consistently applied. This has led to confusion
and reputation risk at Cabinet Capital Asset Committee where bids have
come unannounced, and sometimes un-supported.

Where bids are predicated on the use of an asset previously identified for
disposal there are added financial and programming risks which
potentially undermine the deliverability of the wider capital programme.
There is therefore a need to ensure that each bid is considered in the
context of the wider investment and disposal programme.

As part of the development of the Council’s 10 year Asset Management
Strategy the entire ‘end to end’ process of capital bidding, approvals and
funding is being reviewed. A paper on this strategy will be presented to
this committee later this year. It is recommended that a process to
manage new bids until and after that is in place is implemented with
immediate effect.

Page 44



19.

The proposed interim Capital Bidding Gateway process is at Appendix G.
It is designed to ‘front load’ the process with key information and
resources that will ensure the bid is either rejected early to avoid wasted
effort or fully supported in the context of the wider goals of the
organisation to ensure the resulting business case is robust. Its
implementation is also intended to

e Improve/strengthen the control environment.

¢ Reinforce the one Council, one team culture.

e Supporting a sustainable and affordable capital programme and
business plan.

e Reducing unnecessary and wasteful bureaucracy/time spent on
failed bids.

e Improving cashflow management and reducing programme (spend
& delivery) slippage.

Environmental and climate change considerations

20.

The disposal of properties from the Council’s property portfolio, will have
the consequential impact of removing their carbon emission from the
Council’s carbon footprint. Most proposed sales have been previously
agreed as part of a wider business case (eg. those becoming surplus
through the Hub Programme), and hence the carbon reduction impact of
many of these disposals has previously been accounted for within
projections made by the ECO team. The carbon saving applies only
where the council directly pays the energy bill. For some of the properties
in this disposal programme this is not the case. A further assessment will
be conducted with the ECO Team to quantify the carbon savings.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

21.

Many or most of the properties being disposed of fall below equalities act
compliance, or best practice guidance in respect of accessibility and
equality of access. These disposals are, in most cases, brought about by
the rationalisation of the estate and subsequent investment in retained
facilities which enables the Council to offer greater equality of access for
its customers and staff as a result.

Risk Assessment

22.

23.

Regular reports on progress of property disposals are provided to the
Committee within the Capital Monitoring Report. These reports are based
on a review of risks on disposals, and will enable future forecasts on the
out-turn position on receipts to be tracked during the course of the year.

The introduction of an interim capital gateway bidding process will ensure

that risks to the disposal programme and the deliverability of the wider
capital programme are assessed, monitored and managed appropriately.

Page 45



Financial Implications

24.  The financial implications are contained within the main considerations
sections of this report.

Legal Implications

25. There are no legal implications with the paper other than it will result in
legal work formalising property transactions.

Options Considered

26. Options for specific property disposals are considered on a site by site
basis. Proposed additions to the programme are reviewed between
officers of Strategic Property Services, the Transformation Programme,
and key service departments to ensure an ongoing dialogue about
alternative or optimal uses for sites.

27. The interim capital bidding gateway process will support this site by site
appraisal of options but it will ensure that the discussions and decisions
are also made with full consideration of the wider corporate context.

Dr Carlton Brand
Corporate Director

Report Author:

Neil Ward
Head of Strategic Property Services

27 June 2012
Background Papers - None

Appendices

Appendix A — Capital Programme Approved Disposals

Appendix B — Completed Sales

Appendix C — Sales Subject to Contract (Part 2)

Appendix D — Schedule of Completed and Active Community Asset Transfers
Appendix E — Properties Identified for alternative Council uses (Part 2)
Appendix F — Upcoming Property Disposals (Part 2)

Appendix G — Proposed Interim Capital Programme Gateway Process

Page 46



¥ xipuaddy

2T0T°L'¥Z 33MIWwWo) (s13ssy [e1ded) 1auiqe)

sania1es Auadoud J1893e.3S

8EE6YE €80 LGy '0LL clocy 261724l 8EEC6VE el
Ly 9g L¥6'C 0LlL'8¢ 1218 Ll '9E sawBYyas 19yjg)
vv6L ry6'L 144°0% ojse
8LLVS STAN 4 AR NAY ov9'L 8LL VS Buisnay
oriLl 0]0) A0 ov. 0l orlLLlL Auadoad 18410
L¥0'8. 88.°0¢€ €G9'GYr 009°L L¥0'8.L sawayos sndwe)
621'GL 2€6°0l L6119 621°G.L sAemybiH
68816 'S 990°¢l LOV'EL 68816 uoieosnp3
N3 N3 N3 N3 N3 N3
Buipuny |ejJO0| sydiaoay Buimouaiog Buipun} yyH | suonnquiuo)n 9L/S102 sawayas |ejden
leyded pue sjuels - €1/12102
}obpng |ejo)

ajqejieAe Buipunj Jo XiW 2AIEDIPU]

a|qejieae Buipunj jo xjw aAiesipul Buipn|oul 91.0Z/510Z - £10Z/210Z swweiboid [eyded pajepdn

Vv Xipuaddy




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



0T40¢

s221A19S Auadoud J18a1e11s

Page 49

g xipuaddy ZT0T LT 931Mwwo) (s1assy |ende)d) 1auiqe)
008°6£63
000°G923 Aingsijes ‘19811 uMpag 2z
008'v.L3 Aingsijes ‘Jea1g ssajpug 9|
0000053 Aosmad ‘peoy yoiouwoolg
€L2102 - ZiA
209'€9L'L3
000'GEF splel Buiheld |ooyos Alewlild uojsiays Jewlio
000013 (uswiAed ped) asino) JJoo) UoAy-uo-ploipeld
13 (eapsapn) A9)si0D ‘wie 981 Aeg
13 (espisap\) pioypod ‘pieyolQ Ausyo
000°'002°L3 aluay 92In0say wnieg Aingsijes
000°623 (JuswAed ped) suje) ‘Inoqepunoy py PIOJXQ JO 1SS pue
00000113 WeysyIa|\ ‘JooYos Jouep ayL
000'GZy'L3 (quawAed ped) Aingsijes ‘jooyos AinqybiH
009'G3 weyuaddiy) ‘|ooyos sejoydIN IS je pue
000813 sazinag ‘sbulipjing wue4 azespdIp
000°0S3 S9ZIA8(] ‘Wlied Yied JamoT G Alisulio) pialL a10e §
000'00%'23 gn|D Agbny passeg UOJOOAA ‘BueT] JAAOBUO]S Je pue
000'0L€3 S9ZINS(] ‘Wi yled Jomo €
000°0¥€3 apmoy ‘wieq pug 1S
000°G¥¢3 )j0)salig Hoopped *g 9SNOH ||supnd €

CLLLOZ - L 4A

s9jeg pajajdwon

g xipuaddy



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



oTiop

s|qissod ulejdxa pue Jaquiauw |edoj 0} yeads o] Aidwa sawosaq (a.ed
BIIX3/s)e|4 Juswalnay) pieyalo sAe|) uaym Buisnoy ye Joy ayis [enuajod

paunuspl
sa0Jnos Buipuny 23u0 Yoeq SWo3 0} Ay} ey} Jebeue pIeog EBLY YIM Yo7

asuodsal Buplemy ‘O 0) paIajo SIS alqIssod
J15UNOY UMO | BU} WO paAIadal uones)jdde [ewlo) oN

11 13A00 0] AjUWIapU) JO} POYSE aq 0] [I0UN0Y) Ysled
uay pue jusbe jueua) yim paaibe pue pajenobau aq o} siy} 210ja1aY)
pug| JapualIns 1o} Juswaoueyus snjd pled aq o3 uojesuadwos jejg

‘snduied 1o} palapisuod Buleg ‘jasse albajens
ansiad 0) Ysim A3y} [19UNOD UMD WoL) UoiewIIL0D Buliemy

uowwisiad wolj S0d 4o eale Buuiolpe jo 19)suel) buipuad pjlaH

pauod;sod a10)a13Y) Os|e aJjus0
wwiod 8y} apnjoul 0} awayas 19661q e Jo ped se asn o] Guijoo| eapsap

*abuey a1 8Y) SpNIXS INq YIBY UOPHUOIN YIM 3pNioul [INA

yobpng pue uonebajep ao1nss ay; Yim Buileap uoisaqq| an9ls
|1ouno) umo] woly wio4 ddy Aueduiodde 0} UBld ssauisng Bulllemy
uopeoydde Buemy

1siBojoseyole yum Bunaaw abuelse o} 3910 umo |

pajanysul [e6a7 “pleoq eale Aq panolddy
uonIsod Juaind

2102/90/¥0
2102/90/02
2102/50/5¢
2102/50/9L
2102/50/01
2102/50/20
210Z/v0/0e
Z10zZ/y0o/0L
2102/v0/0L
c1Loz/yo/olL
2102/¥0/0L
a)eqg uonaiduio)

2102/20/82
z1oz/zo/eo
2102/10/LL
LLoz/oL/8lL
1 102/60/0€
1102/60/10
1 102/80/G0
1102/90/L)
1102/90/40
110¢2/90/20
ajeq uonajduio)

sjuswjolly
Auswy
Auawy

Auawy
JENTLT

sjuawio|ly

Aabing siopoq ‘Aieiqi 'saolO

ealy Ae|d
oaoeds uado algnd

eaJe Aejd
sjuswyoly

aoeds uad(Q 211qnd pue eale Aejd

SO0WQ SE YSIqINey
valL
sjusWo|ly

pal4 Buike|g
asf pasodoigd

(sniL ut ppatd) piay buikeld
play Buikeld
BuizesbyAyuswy
pal4 Buife|d
pieyoIO Aunwiwon
pray Buike|d

piay Buifelq

eale Ae|d

eale Ae|d
sjuawio|ly
sjuso|y

asf) pasodoid

lIeH abejjiA 0} uoisug)x yed Je)
lIeH abe||IA 0} UoISUB)XT Nied JeD

pray Butheld

aoedg uadQ ollqnd eue ale Ae|d

sjeoq 1o} afelo)s [euonippy
sjuswo)ly

SjusW)olY

uapleb Auawy

swool Buibuey)n

pueipoom Ajuawy

as pasodoid

J19UNoY ystied

|12UN0Y Ysued jueaod

[IUNoY ysiled umopsily
[15uno) yshied
[I9UN0Y UMO|

|1PUNoY ysued Aempunoy
[IoUN0D UMD
|I2UNOD UMO
115UNOD UMO |

|15UN0D UMo |
|1DUN0Y UMO

1ounod umo] weyuaddiyd
J12uno) uMo] auje)
112UNOY ysited Yyuomyy
119UNoD UMO | AINgsawy

I9UN0Y Ysied uojy
jueoiddy

(19UN0D YSUEd INOUIA WeYSHIOW

119UN0Y) ysied Youkipay
[1DUN0Y Ysled YouApay
|19uno) ysued uoaedn

JIoUno) ystied Alepy IS peayuoq

|19UN0) UMo ]
19UN0Y Ysiied
JI2UN0Y UMO |
|IDUN0Y LMo
J12Uno) umo |
J12UN0Y UMOoL

wesnddy

[9)LIoY |jeH abeyA
J1ouno) ysued piedAd agA|)D
Jiouno) ysued

|12UN0D UMO aule)

qn|D soue) pue Bules
12uno) yshied

119Uno) ysued

J19uno) umo] |leysiabpn
J12UN0Y Ysued auinogply
1ouUnog ysiied plojpue
jueoyddy

TTOZ L4 331Wwo) (s13ssy [e1deD) 18uiqe)
sao1a19s Auadold 21831818

UOpUIH ‘sjusunojly g
jueaod ‘(preysiO
she|) 0] juaselpy) peoy uoyng je pue| Jo sjaated om| G

UMOPSII JO YINOS PuET
uojumo(] 'paaJbe aq 0] S8)IS SNOUEA €
sazina(] ‘a0e|d 19Me/SAIqWBYS aU] Z|

$9ZIN3(J 'wiey sbemag/Aempunoy ||
apeppud 19a0S ubiH €L L 0L
3pEOUY '9SNOH USpIaqaH 1. pueT 6
weysso)) 'aso|) Asuly Buiuiofpe pue g

weyslio) ‘ealy Aeld solpny £
weyuaddiy) ‘sjuawiofy umoplajed 9
weyuaddiy) “yied opuo je pue G
aule) 'uonels asue|Nquy pue allq ¢
UUom}y 'Jueses|d Junol 1e pueT ¢
Aingsewy ‘|iH [liwyinos je pue ¥

sauleg uojy ‘aso]) Alojoay je pueT 5
oueN aus (@)

N e))

weysya|N ‘peoy JajseoueT 'spiald l|eqiood [ysamog
YouAjpay 'poid Buike)d |ooyss 1awiog
YouAlpay ‘Id HI_YD 6
uonedn ‘pjal4 Buike|d Jaddn je pue g
leMpn ‘@Al UoneuoIo) 0} Juadelpe pue 2
Aingsawlely ‘s|liypay ‘plsld 230 Wed uor siym 9
umo} peoig 'piatd Buikeld siiypsy §
weyslio) ‘ealy Ae|d peoy S|IOMISOPA
weysJio) 'ealy Ae|d peoy spaydiq €
weysio) ‘sjuaunojly abpry ay) g
weys.io?) 'sjuauno)y sso1) Aloud |
awepN NS
pajajdwo)n
EL/240Z - ZIA

auoysdoysig ‘lleH abejliA ayi 0) Juadelpe pueT o)

uojysng ‘lleH abe||IA ay} o} Jusoelpe pue 6
uoyelis ‘p|al4 buife|d jooyos Jawio4 g
auel) ‘spiayapse] je pue L
weyuaddiyg ‘asol) Buo 1e pue] 9
Aingsi] 'sjuswio|jy pecy PUBISABIAA G
Aibeag 'sjuswyolly ¢
(reysiabpn ‘usples) asoy ¢
auwnogply ‘swooy Buibuey) z
plojpueT] ‘peoy js:nyui e pue |

aweN a)s

pajejdwo

ZL/LI0Z - LA

sJajsuel] Jassy Aunwiwon

Q xipuaddy



0T408

Q xipuaddy

“lllysamog je pue| 1o} uoisiaold Juswaoe|dal
se sayojid Mau JO UoidNIsuod Buimo||o} Jajsuel) Jnoge suoissnasip Aues SaplIoe; Uolesiosy

"Juawdojanap [ooyas YeQ WeysyjSN 3y} 0} pajejsl Buyepspun
[eJaeliUn woyy Bupinsal DdMIN 0} J9jsuel) ajgissod jnoqe suoissnosip Aje] aoeds uado algnd
*asn gnja 1ayo112 sapn|oul lesodouid :RJON ‘|o00Yas
paeps ab1oag) Jauoy Jo ajes woly buipuny dojeaap uonounfuos Ul Jajsuel}
wial-Buo) yoiym Bumojo} ‘z 10z Jaquisidag woy asn 104 pasibe aq o} aseaTiupyued pue sapijioe} Suibueys ‘spjoy Buikeld
N0 jJuas wuo} uonesiddy play Buike|d
N0 JU3s W0} uofjeslddy ealy Aeld
yodal ajy ayj Bulop |efa

pleog ealy 0} aunf Y2 sjuawyolly
pleoq eale Aq panoiddy pIai4 buifeld
*1 YD O} HOAUOI 2104213y} 05
plos uaaq sey wie uolun ‘AemAue ases| Jesh 56 UO Jd 0} }9| pue| Jo ISON ealy Aeld
ped u) pajsalalul Ius YaInyD ‘pa)salajuIun (1aunogd UMo | sjuawWoly Apunwiwo?)
aunjeudis 10} 91 GANY O} INO JUDS-01 SIDJSURI| ealy Aeld
ainjeubis 10} O 1 GAY O) N0 JUIS-2) SI9)suRL| ealy feld
aimeubls 10) D1 GAY O) IN0 JUas-a1 siajsuel| Aluswy
aImeubis 10) O LEAMY O) 1N0 JUSS-01 SIB)SUBL| Ajuawy
aumeubis 10} O 1 GAAY O] JNO JUIS-0) SI9JSURI | eale Aeld
aimeubis 10} D1 gAY O) N0 Juas-d) SIB)SUR| Auawy
(uonalduiod 0} asoja pue |eba Ui uoneasnay
19)suel) 0} 196pnq Aue si a1ay) Jayjeym
19A0 UoNSaNY ‘uoledljdde [eLwio) LGNS 0 SBYSIM }I JBL1auM aploap 0) D1 punolS) uolealnay
“Apadoid ease
loym By J& J0O0| DM LN 13JBP O} JIB1D UMOL YIIM | 1.0Z JoqWaAoN paaiby Aigjawan
pesjsu| A|dde o} panjosal sey 0| 1ajsuiuIepA "paLaleQ olpnis olpey
palajsuel} 8q UBD iayjaym pue pug| Suspmog Jo SNiels ¥a8yo o] paaN uohealnay Aluswy |eooT
Bu|siApe pue pJeoq Uo JUM Jojsuel| JOSSY S9SN AJJUNWWOD 19Y)0 pue SPy

(uauiwi uonajdwo)) sisquialy pieog ealy Aq panoidde pue paaibe swia | alesy ] uoslLeS) 0] UoISUdXT yred 1e)

pajeme
uoyesdde [eulo ‘Buipassold o} Joud panjosal 8q o0} swa|qosd st sjuaLo|fly
*paaooud 0} Jayjaum Uo UoIsizap Dd Bupiemy sjuswjolly
|1ouUno) ysued
Aq pajulodde siojiaijos maN ‘pajonyisul [ebaT - pieog ealy Aq paroiddy sjusunoly
‘pajonysul [eba ‘pieog ealy Aasmad Je panoiddy pIai4 Buifelq
‘pajonujsul [eba “pleog ealy Aasmad je panoiddy Auswy
3anoqe 0} payul - passold
0} Apeal s1INH pueg 3y} [1UN JEM |[IM SIY1 1RV} 1D Usied yim paaiby qnio yenboi)
sn 0} yoeq 3186 uay} pue AsAIns uoIpuod
UOISSIWWIOD 0} [I2UNOY Yslied 19|10 Ysled uim pajoadsul Apadold ebelo)g
pieog ealy Ay o) Bujo play Bulfeld
aoeds uadp

ssnasiQ - sAejap pssnes sey Yolym uojjoesuel] siy jsuiebe paiapisuod aq o}
pasu sajns umo( |ay2ud (394 uoyeoydde |eusio) ou) paajeoal 1sanbal el yledjooq

2107'L'yZ 3311WWo) (s19ssy [endeD) 18uiged
sa31A13s Auadold o18s1ens

odl [00Y9S AUNWWOD JeQ WeysiIsN o} Jusoelpe puel 6p

odl weysy|a|y ‘Iouely 310WJOOAA 0] JUSJE[pE pUeT 8¢

qnio AgBny S1vO WeysHjely WeYSHIP ‘PIoYuINyS ‘aueT yound Jo yuou spjay Buikeld Ly

Jlouno?) ysued uoysy ajdesig uojysy a|dsalg ‘piald Buikeld |ooyds Jawio g
115Uno Ysued uojsy a|dasig uojysy a|dea)s 'sAie|y IS 1e ealy Aeld S
|louUnNo) umo] aujed aule) ‘poopn Aspuag i

11oUno) ysiied projpueT] piojpueT] ‘apis)ooig je pue €
112UN0Y Ysiled Uoman yinos UOIMBN UINOS ‘peoy MIIA 3JeA ealy Aeld Zv
uno9 ysued Assjuneq Assjuneq 'pN Jesu eale Aeld L
llounod umo | abpligmou | Bpligmol ) ‘(sBulpjing 3HO0A IS ([2iquiL) PIeA UYdLY je pueT of
JIDUNOD UMO | )}9sseq UOHOOAA Jesseg UOHOOAA 'Juasal) Mo||ay6uoT 'plald s190d 6€

[I9UNOD) UMO ] 1j8SSBE UOHOOA nesseq UOHOOAA ‘ealy Aeld LnoD plO
JIOUNOY) UMO| Jjosseq UOJOOAA HasSeg UOJOOAA ‘PROY UOHE)S/PEoY YSIBWAION Je pue [
J1esseg UoHOOM ‘Peay fIN SiunH e puer &
nasseq UOHOON ‘Baly Aeld PjoUMoYs %u
unoy uMo] 1y g UOJOOM, 1 @ UO)JOM ‘PEOY UOPUIMG/3UET JSA0BUO)S JE pueT] D”I

[IoUN0D UMO | 118SSEH UOHOOM
[IoUN0Y UMO | }9sSeq UOHOOM

|1ounog ysued 9)01S SUINOQISIUINA ‘BaIY AB|d MSI/\ MOPESIN £E

J12UN0) uMo | AINGISapA ‘PUNOIS) UONHESII9Y SAITBSSEIS) ZE

|1DUN0Y umo | Aingysapp ‘Aisjawag peoy uoyelg Lg

olpey AJUNWWOY) J3JSUIWIBAA J9)sulwieps 'jleH Alquassy Buluiolpe pue gg
unoy ysied JUOJYoIN ‘suapmog pue SuUeT poomyoo0l) Je pue 62

1sni] JleH umo] abpugmol] abpugmol] ‘lleH umo) g2
aon YUOMpI] ‘peoy SMalpuy 1S /2

[12UNy ysihied JImyinos ‘sjuawiolly 9z

11DUNOYD Yslied Youkipay  YouAlpay 'peoy pIeyslQ pue asojd ay) usasmieq pue 6z

1UN0Q Ustied Youkipay YoUAIpaY 'SIUBWIO]Y PEOY 3JBA $Z
U0 ysued Aasmad 'plald II2GI004 PEOY 1091 €2
J1ouno) ysued KRasmad ‘peoy Yoiowoolg 1e pue zz
11uNoY ysied PEOY YLON ‘NI 19nboi) S8 |z
IuNog ysted QI3 19anS SjiseD ‘INH pueg plO 0Z
1I2unoY ysted uoneT ‘piald uonesIosYy 61
|1ouno”) ysued joouy ‘plsl uonesIosy 8l

11UNoY ystied 18BY2I 1S uolBuy| ‘I Jo) Je pue /|



Proposed Interim Capital Bidding Gateway Process:

End

Appendix G

Outline Business Case
(OBC)

. Scheme Description
. Nature of Asset investment
. Potential Benefits/Risks

reJeCt Asset Review
Team —

End

Finance,
Property,
Corp Assets

approve

Cross Council Officer

refine

Transformation Board

Up to 6 weeks —»

Informal CCAC

Full Business Case (FBC)
finalised with support from

or

End

nominated asset review team
& considered by CLT

reject

CCAC

consider
FBC

approve

Project begins WC Corporate
Project Management applied

Regular Monitoring

Post Completion Review

Page 53

Rapid but key gateway to review
context of OBC in Capital & Asset
use terms

Asset Review Team nominates
support officers and provides focus
for benefit/risk analysis to assist FBC
development

Final sign off (concept/context) from
officers prior to CCAC, CB to chair as
Lead CD and accountable officer for
CCAC and Corp Landlord

FBC Exec Summary — discussions on
priority, preferred options & affordability

4 weeks between informal/formal CCAC,
paper circulated 1 week before



GATEWAY PROCESS

GATEWAY 1:

OBC - Officer
Transformation
Board & CCAC
(informal)

A\ 4

GATEWAY 2:

FBC - CLT &
CCAC (formal)

(potential for schemes < £100k; or wholly funded by specific grant)

A 4

GATEWAY 5&:

Sign off/Post
Completion
review.

CLT

GATEWAY 3:

Programme &
Budget sign off
CLT, Leader &
Cabinet Member

Page 54

GATEWAY 4:

Monitoring

- Qualitative
- Budget
CLT/CCAC




OBC/FBC ASSESSMENT CRITERIA

Scoring
Criteria
1 2 3 4 5
A. Limited ability | Limited ability | Some Provides Provides high
Sustainable on own to on own to potential to | high probability
Communities provide provide maintain probability of/proven 10
(E&A) sustainable sustainable current of/proven year growth local
community communities local stability of community
needs now or | in the future. community. | local numbers/place &
in future. community | meet future
provision. needs.
B. 0% externally | 50% 50% 100% 100% external
Funding funded/limited | externally externally externally funded & no
capital funded/capital | funded & funded. revenue
receipts, but receipts and options costs/income
options to options to available to offsets costs.
fund fund 50% fund 50%
borrowing. borrowing from
costs. Capital
and/or
revenue.
C. + costs but 50% saving Payback 2 | Payback 2 Payback in < 2
Saving options possible and | — 5 years — 5 years years 100% and
available to options probable 100% highly | proven.
fund. available to and likely.
fund alternative
remaining saving
costs. options
available.
D. Partner Partner Partner Partner No partner
Partner engagement engagement engagemen | engagemen | engagement
dependency/suppo | needed to needed to tneed to t needed & | necessary.
rt make viable make make secured.
but not yet proposed proposal
NB - partner can approached. viable and viable and
be internal or/and discussions granted as
external started. principle.
E. Liability not Liability Liability Liability Liability certain if
H & S and Risk quantified but | possible but possible highly works not carried
will be < cost | not quantified | but not probable out & liability >
of works. & may be less | quantified and cost of | cost.
than cost of only works in
works. estimated & | line with
initial liability.
project > =
cost of
works.
F. Dispute over | Requires Clarification | Procuremen | Clear title
Legality title/licenses. | legal action needed t OJU standard
Sitting e.g. CPO, only can be | needed but | contract.
tenants etc... | Planning managed in | standard
(& costs approval (and | house as contract
included costs normal process
above). included business. expected.
above)
G. Large staff Large staff Minor staff | Minor staff No staff
HR implications implication for | implications | implications | implications/
for same improved and e.g. move, Improves staff
solutions conditions delivers but conditions.
e improves
Page Sgditions. conditions.




T Will require Will require Can be Can be Can be managed
major system | significant managed managed within existing
reconfiguratio | system but will but will system and
n and costs reconfiguratio | have need some | resources

n and costs implications | prioritisation | capability/capacit
for other of other y
projects work
and system
operations.

Page 56




Agenda ltem 10

WILTSHIRE COUNCIL

CABINET (CAPITAL ASSETS) COMMITTEE
24" July 2012

Subject: Land off Innox Road Trowbridge

Cabinet member: Councillor Stuart Wheeler - Cabinet Member for
Transformation, Culture, Leisure and Libraries

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1. To inform Members of a local Leisure need in Trowbridge, to consider the
representations made by the Area Board and local members and to seek
direction on how Members wish officers to proceed.

Background

2. Wiltshire Council’s existing Leisure and Play Strategies highlight the need
to increase and improve Leisure Facilities in the Trowbridge area, and this
has been supported by a specific working group of the Area Board.

3. As part of on going community engagement to support the Leisure
Strategy in the Trowbridge Area, the local community and Area Board has
expressed views that changing facilities are required in the vicinity of
Innox Road to better service the needs of the existing local football field
and to ease car parking congestion relating to the use of the field

4. This site, as shown edged in red on the attached plan was formerly used
as a Youth and Community Centre and tennis courts. However, due to
structural problems, the building was demolished several years ago and
the site (including the courts) has been vacant since.

5. Various alternative uses for the site have been considered in the past to
include community use. The most notable of these was the proposed
creation of a new Community Centre for the Moroccan Community of
Trowbridge.

6. Each proposal failed due to grant funding applications being unsuccessful,
but a current funding package exists for the changing room and car park
proposal that is expected to be successful.

7. The site was considered by Officers for the housing PFI scheme, for 100%

Affordable Housing and for Extra Care Provision but dismissed as
unsuitable.

Page 57



8. Adjacent to the site is the Trowbridge Judo Club site which is also owned
by the Council but leased with a long end date to the Club.

9. The site falls outside the extent of the Stallard Street recreation ground
and play area in the Leisure and Recreation Development Plan Document,
but has been confirmed by Leisure officers as suitable to support the
existing provision

10.  The site lies within the development limits of Trowbridge and subject to
any constraints associated with site specific matters (which would apply to
any use, e.g trees in this case), the infill policies of the development plan
apply to this site.

Main Considerations for the Council

11.  To give consideration to each of the options below and to confirm which
option to explore further.

Environmental and climate change considerations

12.  The proposal does not have any direct impact on these considerations.
Planning approval already exists for changing rooms and parking
provision. However, any planning permissions required to be granted for
other uses would take into consideration environmental and climate
change considerations and stipulate appropriate mitigation measures.

13. There are Tree Preservation Orders on most the trees on the site and
these would be protected in the usual way with whatever option is
adopted.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

14.  There are none with this proposal.

Risk Assessment

15.  Some reasonable assumptions have been made by Officers in bringing
the options forward in this report and the sums of money reported herein
have been taken to reflect the risks involved and are made to help inform
the decision making process.

Financial Implications

16. The financial implications vary depending on which option is pursued and
these are described in the options considered section below.

Legal Implications
17. There may be legal implications relating to the implementation of the

options but these are considered to be standard property legal
implications and agreements.

Page 58



Options Considered

18.  There are 2 potential uses that have been identified for this site, each with
their own financial implications.

18.1 Option 1 - Changing Facilities: In 2010, the Trowbridge
Community Area Board formed a sub group, consisting of
members, local community representitives, local sports clubs,
Trowbridge Town Council and representatives from Witlshire
Council, to consider how the lack of formal outdoor sports provision
in the Trowbridge Community Area could be addressed.

Investigation into the existing outdoor formal sports provision swiftly
highlighted the need to improve both Stallard Street Recreation
Ground and Seymour Park.

It was quickly established that housing schemes previously
identified for the old Innox Hall site had met with firm local resident
and political opposition. Furthermore town council elected members
made it clear that they wished the area to be kept as a recreational
asset.

There is an undoubted need for this scheme at Innox Rd. The West
Wiltshire Leisure Needs Assessment adopted by Wiltshire Council
in 2009 identified a shortfall in formal outdoor recreational pitches
and facilities in the Trowbridge area. The present situation of hiring
out a pitch without changing accommodation should not continue,
furthermore the provision of changing accommodation will help
attract better use of an existing Wiltshire Council asset.

Officers were asked to assist with preparing a scheme that would
gain support of local residents, the local community and members
as well as planning permission.

The implementation of this scheme will enhance and improve the
existing amenity and recreational land , helping to address the
identified shortfall. Additionally local residents and clubs are given
upgraded facilities that should, and officers are confident will,
encourage greater Leisure activity in an area that lacks sufficient
facilities.

The site currently has the benefit of an unimplemented full planning
permission for the creation of 26 car parking spaces and modular
changing facilities. The project has gained local political and
community support as well as partner funding.

The necessary funding for implementing this permission has been

identified from 3 main sources: £50k from the Trowbridge S106
contributions received for recreation and amenity projects; £16k

Page 59



from Trowbridge Town Council and £35k from the Football
Foundation.

18.2 Option 2 - Private Market Housing — The site could support
open market residential units on this site and a capital receipt could
therefore be generated from it. Further investigation is required to
properly assess the number of units that it could support which
would influence the level of receipt that could be determined but an
indication of this is provided in Appendix 2. In the current capital
programme this site does not feature in the receipts assumptions.

Conclusion

19.  Option 1 would provide what the local community requires, but this would
require the Council to forego a capital receipt. If Option 1 is pursued, such
a loss in capital receipt needs to be recognised as an indirect investment
into the community in the sum of the loss of the value of the capital
receipt. Running the site for this purpose will have a revenue implication
which must be offset by the extra income generated from extra hiring
charges that would be generated from the enhanced facility.

Proposal

20. Members are asked to decide which option they wish officers to pursue.
Reason for Proposal

21.  To provide clear direction to officers on the future use of this site .

Dr Carlton Brand
Corporate Director

Report Authors:
Robin Townsend Stephen Morgan
Head of Leisure Head of Valuation and Estates

Date of report: 6™ July 2012
Background Papers

The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation of
this report:

None
Appendices

Appendix 1 - Site plan
Appendix 2 — PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL

Page 60



Title:

Trowbridge Stallards Recreation Ground

Dr Carlton Brand BA MSc EngD
Corporate Direclor, Resources

Y

Telephone 0300 456 0100 W‘ I h . C . I
Dote |13t June 2071 litshire Counci
Scale: 11250 Crown copyright and ~==——=n_ Where everybody malters
database rights 2011
Drawing No: | Blank Ordnance Survey 100049050

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Agenda ltem 11

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet Capital Asset Committee

24 July 2012

Subject: Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Project

Cabinet member: Councillor Toby Sturgis
Waste Property, Environment and Development Control
Services

Key Decision: Yes

Executive Summary

The Council owns and manages 90 permanent and 12 transit gypsy and
traveller pitches in Wiltshire across 6 sites.

Through the emerging Gypsies and Travellers Development Plan Document a
need has been identified for additional pitches in Wiltshire. The provision of
additional pitches will enable the council to more effectively tackle issues of
unauthorised development and unauthorised encampment.

In addition, a site survey carried out in 2008 and a more recent internal audit
report carried out in 2011 identified a number of outstanding issues with the
condition of the sites in the council’s ownership.

In May 2011 the council had the opportunity to bid for funding from the Homes
and Communities Agency (HCA) to invest in the refurbishment and new
provision of gypsy and traveller pitches. A bid for £3.6m capital funding was
submitted to refurbish 40 of the council’'s permanent pitches and to provide 20
new pitches.

On 5" January 2012 the HCA announced that the council had been
successful in securing an allocation of £3.42m to deliver 60 gypsy and
traveller pitches by March 2015. This capital investment, together with
£250,000 allocated in the council’s capital budget for provision of gypsy and
traveller sites will enable the council to invest in gypsy and traveller sites
raising the standard of accommodation and reducing the ongoing revenue
deficit to the budget.

Initial feasibility work has indicated that the overall cost of delivering the
project may be higher than originally anticipated when the bid was submitted
and is likely to require additional borrowing to enable a standard of facilities
that will meet the council’s aims and objectives. Due to the higher than
anticipated cost approval has been sought from the HCA to reduce the
number of pitches included within the scope of the project from 60 to 50 whilst
maintaining the full grant funding allocation. This will reduce the funding gap

1
Page 63



significantly and enable the council to continue with the project albeit with an
increased level of investment.

Approval is now sought to adopt the recommendation within the options paper
to proceed with the project based on Option 3, enter into a framework
agreement with the HCA to agree the terms for receiving and using the
allocated funding and to enter into a contract with a developer to carry out the
works to the sites following the conclusions of an appropriate tendering
process.

Proposal

Members are recommended to;

1.

Approve the recommendation within the options paper to proceed with
the project based on Option 3 (preferred) or Option 2 to deliver 50
pitches providing the council receives appropriate agreement from the
HCA.

Approve the provision of borrowing as set out in the options paper to
support delivery of the project which will be paid back through the
service via increased rental income

Delegate authority to the Service Director for Strategy and
Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for waste,
property, environment and development control services to enter into a
framework agreement with the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA)
to deliver 40 refurbished and 10 new gypsy and traveller pitches by
March 2015 with capital grant funding provided by the HCA.

Delegate authority to the Service Director for Strategy and
Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for waste,
property, environment and development control services to enter into a
contract to deliver the newbuild works for the 50 pitches

Delegate authority to the Service Director for Strategy and
Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for waste,
property, environment and development control services to enter into
any associated legal agreements or procurement activities to enable
the delivery of the project.

Reason for Proposal

There are a number of drivers for pursuing the opportunity to secure grant
funding to invest in existing and new gypsy and traveller pitches in Wiltshire.
These include;

(i)

The requirement to ensure the provision of good quality well

2
Page 64




managed sites
(i) The need to reduce unauthorised encampments
(i)  The need to reduce unauthorised developments

These outcomes have been supported through the approval of the Council’s
Gypsy and Traveller Strategy by Cabinet on 24" May 2010, traveller policies
within the emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy, the emerging Development Plan
Document for Gypsy and Traveller sites and the internal audit report August
2011 relating to the provision of services to travellers by the Council.

James Cawley, Service Director — Strategy and Commissioning

3
Page 65




Wiltshire Council

Cabinet Capital Asset Committee

24 July 2012

Subject: Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Project

Cabinet member: Councillor Toby Sturgis

Waste Property, Environment and Development Control
Services

Key Decision: Yes

Purpose of Report

1.

To approve the recommendation within the options paper to proceed with
the project based on Option 3 (preferred) or Option 2 to deliver 50 pitches
providing the council receives appropriate agreement from the HCA,;

To approve the provision of borrowing as set out in the options paper to
support the delivery of the project which will be paid back through the
service via increased rental income;

To seek authority to enter into an agreement with the Homes and
Communities Agency (HCA) to commit capital funding to deliver 50 gypsy
and traveller pitches and;

To seek authority to enter into a contract with a developer, selected through
a tendering process, to carry out the works to deliver the 50 pitches by
March 2015;

To seek authority to enter into any associated legal agreements/contract or
procurement activities to enable the completion of the project.

Background

6.

In May 2010 Cabinet approved the Gypsy and Traveller Strategy. One of
the objectives of this strategy is to achieve clear pathways to providing
appropriate sites for Gypsies and Travellers, with standards of
accommodation on local authority sites being equitable to that of the settled
population.

Between 6™ April and 4™ June 2010 the Council consulted on a new Gypsy

and Traveller sites Development Plan Document (DPD). As part of the
wider consultation on the Wiltshire Core Strategy, from June 2011 to August

4
Page 66



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

2011, a draft topic paper was produced relating to Gypsies and Travellers
and referring to Core Policy 31. Responses to the consultation document
are currently being assessed. The purpose of the Gypsy and Travellers
DPD includes ensuring the identified needs of Gypsies, Travellers and
Travelling Showpeople who permanently reside in Wiltshire are met through
the allocation of suitable and sustainable new sites and assisting the
Council in reducing the occurrence of unauthorised Gypsy and Traveller
encampments and associated nuisance through the provision of adequate
authorised transit and permanent sites.

In 2008 a site conditions survey identified that local authority managed sites
are in a poor state of repair. No capital budget has been identified to
undertake large scale refurbishment or rebuilding of these sites.

In August 2011 the Council’s internal audit report identified a high risk in
delaying funding and carrying out essential and urgent repairs risking health
and safety incidents at Traveller sites. The report recommended that
urgently needed repairs threatening health and safety should be undertaken
as a priority.

The project seeks to contribute to addressing the objectives of the Gypsy
and Traveller Strategy, core policy 47 of the emerging Wiltshire Core
Strategy, the Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document and to
address issues raised as part of the 2008 site conditions survey and the
internal audit of Gypsy and Traveller sites in the Council’s ownership.

In May 2011 the Council expressed an interest in securing £3.6m capital
funding from the HCA to deliver 60 gypsy and traveller pitches in Wiltshire.

On 5™ January 2012 the HCA announced that the council had been
successful in securing £3,420,014 to deliver 60 gypsy and traveller pitches.

Following on from the confirmation of funding a feasibility study was
undertaken to confirm the financial assumptions used within the bid which
included the complete demolition and rebuild of 3 existing sites and the
provision of 20 new pitches. This report outlined costs significantly higher
than originally anticipated and therefore some further work has been
undertaken to consider the options for the project as a whole and these
have been consolidated into the options paper in Appendix A

In June 2012, a further proposal to reduce the number of pitches delivered
through the project from 60 to 50 whilst retaining the full grant funding
allocation was submitted to the HCA for consideration.

In order to secure the funding the Council will need to enter into a
framework agreement with the HCA.

In addition, if approval is received to continue the project it will be necessary
to commence a procurement process to ensure the council is in a position
to enter into contract in January 2013 and start on site with the first phase of
pitch refurbishments in March/April 2013.

5
Page 67



Main Considerations for the Council

Project Governance

17. A governance structure has been set up for the project including a Project
Board, chaired by Councillor Toby Sturgis and a Project Delivery Group.

Consultation

18. A programme of consultation has been developed including consultation
with Lead Members, local Members, Area Boards, local residents and
gypsy and traveller households which commenced in February 2012 and is
currently ongoing.

Communication

19. A communication plan has been developed and was agreed by the Project
Board. It outlines the plans for communication with all stakeholders and
partners including the media and residents and will be updated as the
project progresses.

Decanting

20. Consideration has been given within the options paper to whether or not the
full decant of residents from the existing sites is required in order to
complete the objectives of the project.

21. Where appropriate estimated decanting costs have been included in the
financial appraisal.

Land Purchase

22. Delegated authority was received to proceed with exercising the option to
purchase land adjacent to the Thingley Traveller site. This purchase
enables the provision of an additional 8 pitches and provides a phased
approach to the refurbishment of the existing site.

23. The project team is also looking into the possibility of creating a Community
Land Trust to deliver a small number of pitches although it is unclear at the
present time whether this would be achieved by the funding deadlines and
within the scope of this project

Procurement

24. Options for procuring the delivery of the new and refurbished pitches are
also being explored with advice from the Corporate Procurement Unit and it
is envisaged that, if the project proceeds, a tender process will be
undertaken between October and January to select an appropriate
contractor.

6
Page 68



Financial Feasibility

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

The bid was based on achieving the completion of 60 pitches with a total
scheme cost of £3.85m, receiving grant funding from the HCA of £3.6m plus
£250,000 of the council’s capital grant funding.

The HCA granted the council £3.42m grant funding, £180k less than
originally bid for and a feasibility study was commissioned to ensure the
project would be deliverable within the reduced budget.

Following on from the receipt of a feasibility study indicating that the
construction costs are higher than originally anticipated further work has
been undertaken to look at the options for the project as a whole.

The financial implications of each option is considered within the options
paper attached at Appendix A

Discussions with the HCA have indicated that there is no additional funding
available for the project, however, consideration has been given by the HCA
to a reduction in the number of pitches delivered whilst maintaining the
allocated level of grant funding.

Planning

30.

31.

Work is ongoing to ensure the new pitches are delivered in line with the
emerging core strategy, the emerging Gypsy & Traveller Site Allocations
DPD and generally in line with planning policy.

Planning permission may be required for the new pitches. Applications for
permission will follow the planning policy process including public
consultation.

Environmental Impact of the Proposal

32.

33.

34.

35.

Refurbishment of existing gypsy and traveller sites will contribute to the
improvement of the local physical environment.

Provision of new pitches will meet planning policy requirements in terms of
sustainability and impact on the local environment.

As part of the work to improve facilities on the existing sites, options for use
of biomass heating and other sustainable energy generation will be
explored.

New amenity blocks will be provided on the sites to meet at minimum code
level 3 for sustainable homes incorporating a high level of insulation to
reduce energy consumption.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

7
Page 69



36.

37.

38.

39.

The project involves the improvement of facilities for one of Wiltshire’s
minority groups as well as provision of new accommodation for those
groups. If the project does not proceed this will have an adverse impact on
this minority group and will leave them with sub-standard facilities which are
not equitable to the settled community.

The project will involve comprehensive consultation and communication
with local residents to achieve optimum community cohesion and
integration. Consultation has already begun with the communities on the
existing sites proposed to be included within the project and although steps
have been taken to manage expectations if the project does not proceed
this could have a negative impact on the council’s reputation within this
community.

The project aims to provide additional pitches to assist the council in
managing instances of unauthorised encampments and developments
reducing the perceived negative image of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller
community. If the project does not proceed this could perpetuate instances
of unauthorised camping/development and the negative image of the
community lessening community cohesion.

An Equality Analysis of the project has been carried out in line with the
council’s approved template and is being monitored and updated on an
ongoing basis.

Risk Assessment

40.

41.

42.

There is a risk that development of the proposal will generate negative
publicity for the Council. However strategies have been put in place to
manage communication and consultation to mitigate this risk and outline the
positive benefits of the proposal for local communities.

There is a risk that further resources dedicated to evaluating and
developing this proposal will lead to a decision that the project is not viable
and/or deliverable. However, this is a low risk as substantial work has been
undertaken to explore the potential barriers to delivery. All efforts will be
made to find workable solutions to enable the project to proceed.

There is a risk that the HCA may refuse the council’s proposal to reduce the
number of pitches being delivered to 50 pitches instead of 60 whilst
retaining the full grant funding allocation. If this occurs the council will not be
able to proceed with the project within significant additional investment,
however, this risk is low as the HCA are willing to work with the council to
find a solution for the project to proceed.

Financial Implications

43.

There is a sum of £250,000 allocated within the Council’s capital budget for
provision of gypsy and traveller sites. It is proposed that this funding is
used to support the delivery of the project.

8
Page 70



44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

Following the purchase of land adjacent to the Thingley site there will be
£115k left in that capital budget.

The HCA has allocated funding of £3.42m to enable the cost of the project
to be fully met. However, the payment terms of the HCA are that funding
will not be forthcoming until completion. Therefore, the Council will need to
commit expenditure in advance of receiving the grant funding. As units are
completed, the Council will be able to claim the grant from the HCA. The
interest costs incurred have been included within the overall project costs.

It is anticipated that the rental income raised from the letting of the pitches
and/or the lease payments will cover ongoing planned and reactive
management and maintenance costs for the 50 pitches.

Rent modelling work has been undertaken to assess the amount of
borrowing that may be supported by the service in order to bridge any
potential funding gap.

If the project does not proceed the council will need to find approximately
£450-550k of capital and revenue funding over the next 5 years to continue
to support the existing sites and meet some of the aims and objectives
outlined in the Strategy and Audit reports.

If the HCA accept the council’s proposal to reduce the number of units to 50
but reduces the grant funding proportionately there would be additional
borrowing required to support the delivery of the project as outlined in the
options paper.

If the project proceeds, there will be further value engineering work
undertaken to reduce the construction costs and it is anticipated that this
will reduce the level of borrowing required.

Legal Implications

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

Legal services will also be required to advise on site purchase and any
planning agreements required.

Legal advice has also been sought on the terms of the HCA framework
agreement.

There will be a number of models of ownership and management of the
sites to consider as part of this proposal.

Further legal advice will be sought regarding the appropriate models for the
sites being considered as part of this project.

Options include continued ownership and management of the sites by the
Council, long lease arrangements or options for self-ownership and
management by the gypsies and travellers. The legal and financial
implications of these options will need to be further explored.

9
Page 71



Options Considered

56.

S7.

Not to progress the project

This option is not a no cost option for the council and would remove the
opportunity to access government funding for the 2011-15 programme of
investment in gypsy and traveller sites. The implications of this would be
that the Council would need to find other ways of investing in sites owned
by the local authority in order to address the issues outlined in the options
paper and supported by the audit report and condition surveys. The Council
would also need to be able to demonstrate how it is enabling provision of
sufficient pitches in Wiltshire in order to effectively defend against
unauthorised encampment and unauthorised development.

To progress the project on a retain and rebuild approach or demolition and
rebuild approach for 60 pitches

Additional work has shown that whilst the main project objectives would be
achieved through either of these options they are financially unacceptable
for the council given the additional borrowing that would be required and the
ongoing effect on the council’s revenue budget.

58.To progress the project on a reduced scope basis of 50 pitches

This option enables the council to meet its original objectives for the existing
sites, providing sustainable accommodation with reduced management and
maintenance implications. Whether the HCA agree for the council to retain
the full grant funding allocation or reduce it proportionately borrowing is
likely to be required to a varying degree to meet the full costs of the project.
This will be supported through the increased rental income from the new
and refurbished pitches and would be significantly less than delivering the
original 60 pitches. This option still delivers 10 of the original 20 additional
pitches proposed to assist the council in meeting the demand outlined in the
Core Strategy.

Conclusions

59.

60.

61.

62.

The gypsy and traveller project will deliver substantial investment in
improving conditions on existing pitches and delivering new pitches in line
with the council’s gypsy and traveller strategy and core strategy policy.

The ability to use Government funding will reduce the pressure on the
council’s own capital and revenue budgets.

Due to the tight timescales it is essential to enter into agreement with the
HCA for the use of their funding and to be able to enter into contract with a
developer as soon as possible to enable a start on site for the first phase of
construction in March 2013.

Members are asked to:

a.Approve the recommendation within the options paper to proceed
with the project based on Option 3 (preferred) or Option 2 to

10
Page 72



deliver 50 pitches providing the council receives appropriate
agreement from the HCA.

b.Approve the provision of borrowing as set out in the options paper
to support delivery of the project which will be paid back through
the service via increased rental income

c. Delegate authority to the Service Director for Strategy and
Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
waste, property, environment and development control services to
enter into a framework agreement with the Homes and
Communities Agency (HCA) to deliver 40 refurbished and 10 new
gypsy and traveller pitches by March 2015 with capital grant
funding provided by the HCA.

d. Delegate authority to the Service Director for Strategy and
Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
waste, property, environment and development control services to
enter into a contract to deliver the newbuild works for the 50
pitches

e.Delegate authority to the Service Director for Strategy and
Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
waste, property, environment and development control services to
enter into any associated legal agreements or procurement
activities to enable the delivery of the project.

James Cawley, Service Director — Strategy & Commissioning

Report Author:

Janet O’Brien

Head of New Housing

Tel. 01249 706550

Email. Janet.obrien@wiltshire.gov.uk

4 July 2012

Background Papers

HCA Draft Framework Agreement available at
http://www.homesandcommunities.co.uk/ourworkl/traveller-pitch-funding
Gypsy and Traveller Strategy

Internal Audit Reports

Appendices
Appendix A — Options Paper (Confidential)

11
Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Agenda ltem 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



Agenda ltem 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Capital Budget Monitoring 2011/12 Outturn Report
	Outturn capital monitoring Appendix A
	Outturn Capital monitoring Appendix B

	8 Transformation Programme Update
	Appendix A Operational Estate projects update July12
	Appendix B Hub Prog update July12
	Appendix C - Depot update
	Appendix D  ICT Prog update July12

	9 Property Disposals
	Property Disposals - Appendix A
	Property Disposals - Appendix B
	Property Disposals - Appendix D
	Property Disposals - Appendix G

	10 Land at Innox Road, Trowbridge
	Innox Road - Site Plan

	11 Gypsy and Traveller Project
	13 Property Disposals
	PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL - Property Disposals - Appendix E
	PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL - Property Disposals - Appendix F

	14 Land at Innox Road, Trowbridge
	15 Gypsy and Traveller Project

